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1                        PROCEEDING

2             JUDGE ALBERS:  By the authority vested in

3 me by the Illinois Commerce Commission, I now call

4 Docket 13-0301.  This docket concerns Ameren Illinois

5 Rate MAP-P Modernization Action Plan - Annual Update

6 Filing for that.  May I have the appearances for the

7 record, please.

8             MR. FITZHENRY:  On behalf of Ameren

9 Illinois Company, my name is Edward Fitzhenry.  I'm

10 also entering the appearance of Eric Dearmont.  Our

11 address is 1901 Chouteau Avenue, St. Louis, Missouri

12 63103.

13             MR. STURTEVANT:  Also appearing on behalf

14 of the Ameren Illinois Company, Albert Sturtevant,

15 Christopher Kennedy, and Hanna Conger of Whitt

16 Sturtevant LLP, 180 North LaSalle Street, Suite 2001,

17 Chicago, Illinois 60601.  Phone number (312)251-3017.

18             MR. ALBERS:  Is that Conger with a C or a

19 K?

20             MR. STURTEVANT:  Yes, C-o-n-g-e-r.

21             MS. SWAN:  On behalf of the Staff of the

22 Illinois Commerce Commission, Kimberly Swan, James

23 Olivero, and Michael Lannon.  Michael Lannon and Kim

24 Swan's address is 160 North LaSalle Street, Suite
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1 C-800, Chicago, Illinois 60601.

2             MR. OLIVERO:  And my address is 527 East

3 Capitol Avenue, Springfield, Illinois 62701.

4             MR. ROBERTSON:  On behalf of the Illinois

5 Industrial Energy Consumers, Eric Robertson, Lueders,

6 Robertson & Konzen, P.O. Box 735, 1939 Delmar, Granite

7 City, Illinois 62040.

8             MS. SATTER:  Appearing on behalf of the

9 People of the State of Illinois, Susan L. Satter and

10 Sameer Doshi, 100 West Randolph Street, Chicago,

11 Illinois 60601.  And my apologies for the lateness.

12             JUDGE ALBERS:  Thank you.

13                   Mr. Soderna, did you want to enter

14 an appearance?

15             MS. SODERNA:  Yes, your Honor.  Julie

16 Soderna on behalf of the Citizens Utility Board, 309

17 West Washington, Suite 800, Chicago, Illinois 60606,

18 and also appearing on behalf of the Citizens Utility

19 Board is Christie Hicks, H-i-c-k-s.

20             JUDGE ALBERS:  Okay.  Thank you.

21             MS. SODERNA:  Thank you.

22             JUDGE ALBERS:  Any others wishing to enter

23 an appearance?

24                   Let the record show no response.
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1                   In terms of preliminary matters, we

2 have two pending motions to strike and the motion

3 filed by Staff.  Judge Yoder and I have reviewed the

4 arguments on that, and we hereby grant the Staff

5 motion to strike.

6                   So when Mr. Stafford's testimony

7 comes up, we'll have a revised version of that?

8             MR. FITZHENRY:  Correct.

9             JUDGE ALBERS:  Thank you.

10                   And with regard to the Ameren motion

11 to strike part of the AG testimony, I think Mr.

12 Fitzhenry, you had --

13             MR. FITZHENRY:  Right, your Honor.  As you

14 know, on behalf of the Attorney General's office, the

15 Commission Staff, and the Company had sent to you and

16 Judge Yoder an email Friday afternoon outlining the

17 parties' intentions with regard to this docket and

18 13-0510 and 13-0517, and along those lines, it's our

19 expectation that we would present a joint motion

20 perhaps no later than Thursday in each of those three

21 dockets, and with that, we would ask that you would

22 either extend or defer a ruling on the motion to

23 strike as again that may not be needed in light of the

24 process or the approach that these parties intend to
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1 take going forward.

2             JUDGE ALBERS:  Okay.  Any other comments on

3 that?  We're happy to defer ruling on that motion,

4 having the motion on file.  So --

5             MR. FITZHENRY:  Right.  There's also a

6 motion to consolidate, and again that would be coupled

7 with the joint motion that the parties, the AG,

8 Commission Staff, and the Company will be addressing

9 in the context of that pleading as well.  So there may

10 not be a need to rule on that specific motion.

11                   I think just one other item on that,

12 I know that you and Judge Yoder just recently received

13 that email, and we don't know if you've had a chance

14 to digest it or give any thought to it.  We hope we're

15 moving in the right direction, and perhaps today or

16 some later time during the hearing this week you can

17 let us know if you think it's an approach worth

18 pursuing.

19             JUDGE ALBERS:  We can tell you right now

20 we're willing to consider what you put out in the

21 email, but we don't want to make a definitive

22 statement until we see your filing and see what

23 everybody has to say about that.

24             MR. FITZHENRY:  All right.  We appreciate
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1 that.  Thank you.

2             JUDGE ALBERS:  Thank you.  As you mentioned

3 the motion to consolidate, we can set a schedule in

4 this case for that with responses, I think, due

5 tomorrow, and replies on Thursday given what you just

6 laid out as far as getting the stipulation motion for

7 us, rule of stipulation, however you're going to

8 characterize it, and entry of a stipulation.  You said

9 you're going to have that on file on Thursday?

10             MR. FITZHENRY:  No later than Thursday.

11             JUDGE ALBERS:  Should we defer or delay the

12 response and reply of that motion to consolidate then?

13 Is there any thought on that?

14             MS. SATTER:  Our expectation is that the

15 stipulation will address consolidation and the motion

16 to strike.  So it will address the situation that

17 we're in relative to the 9201 and this docket.  So I

18 think there's no need for separate briefing.  I would

19 hope that we could get it to you sooner rather than

20 later, you know, sooner than Thursday.  I would prefer

21 it, you know, the next day or so, but it's intended to

22 resolve all those issues and all those motions.

23             JUDGE ALBERS:  That's what I understood.  I

24 want to make sure there's no need to address
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1 separately the motion to consolidate pursuant to the

2 schedule we put in last place last Friday.  I think we

3 can hold the schedule in abeyance and save you the

4 trouble.

5             MR. FITZHENRY:  That's correct.

6             MS. SATTER:  That's correct.

7             JUDGE ALBERS:  We'll do that then if

8 there's no objections.

9                   Okay.  Any other preliminary matters

10 then this morning?

11                   I think we can go right into the

12 schedule we've got laid out then.  Today's list we've

13 got Mr. Mill, Ms. Voiles, Mr. Heintz, and Mr. Kennedy.

14 Are they all in the room?  I'll go ahead and swear

15 them all in at once.

16                      (Oath given.)

17             JUDGE ALBERS:  Thank you.  Call your first

18 witness.

19             MR. FITZHENRY:  The Company calls Mr. Mill

20 to the stand, please.

21                  *    *    *    *    *

22                       ROBERT MILL,

23 having been duly sworn, was examined and testified as

24 follows:
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1                    DIRECT EXAMINATION

2 QUESTIONS BY MR. FITZHENRY:

3        Q.   Would you please state your name and

4 business address for the record.

5        A.   Yes.  My name is Robert Mill, M-i-l-l, 6

6 Executive Drive, Collinsville, Illinois 62234.

7        Q.   Mr. Mill, on whose behalf are you employed?

8        A.   Ameren Illinois Company.

9        Q.   And what is your job title?

10        A.   Senior Director Regulatory Policy and

11 Rates.

12        Q.   And, Mr. Mill, have you caused to be

13 prepared for the submission into the record in this

14 proceeding some testimonies?

15        A.   Yes.

16        Q.   I'm going to show you what's been

17 previously marked for identification as Ameren Exhibit

18 17.0 titled Rebuttal Testimony of Robert J. Mill and

19 ask if that is your prepared rebuttal testimony?

20        A.   It is.

21        Q.   Was this prepared by you?

22        A.   Yes.

23        Q.   Do you have any corrections or changes to

24 your rebuttal testimony?
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1        A.   I do not.

2        Q.   Your testimony consists of 14 pages of

3 questions and answers and Appendix A?

4        A.   Yes.

5        Q.   If I were to ask you the questions that are

6 set forth in Ameren Exhibit 17.0, would you give the

7 same answers today?

8        A.   I would.

9        Q.   Mr. Mill, now I turn your attention to

10 another testimony that's been marked for

11 identification as Ameren Exhibit 25.0 titled

12 Surrebuttal Testimony of Robert J. Mill.  Again ask if

13 that is your surrebuttal testimony for admission into

14 the record on this topic?

15        A.   It is.

16        Q.   I understand that an Errata was prepared

17 and filed this past Friday.  You're familiar with the

18 changes in your testimony associated with that Errata?

19        A.   I am.

20        Q.   If I were to ask you the questions that

21 were set forth in Ameren Exhibit 25.0 taking into

22 account the Errata, would you give the same answers

23 today?

24        A.   I would.
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1        Q.   And I guess this is prepared by you as

2 well?

3        A.   Yes.

4             MR. FITZHENRY:  Your Honor, at this point

5 we move for the admission of Ameren Exhibits 17.0 and

6 25.0 and tender Mr. Mill for examination.

7             JUDGE ALBERS:  Okay.  We'll hold off on the

8 admission pending the cross exam.

9                   Is your microphone on?

10             THE WITNESS:  The green light is on.

11             JUDGE ALBERS:  Great.  Very good.  Thank

12 you.

13             MS. SATTER:  May I just ask whether the

14 Company has any printed copies of the Errata with

15 them?

16             MR. FITZHENRY:  Yes.

17             MS. SATTER:  Thank you.

18             MR. FITZHENRY:  Right down there.

19             JUDGE YODER:  Staff, wish to go?

20             MR. OLIVERO:  Yes, your Honor.  Staff would

21 proceed.

22                    CROSS-EXAMINATION

23 QUESTIONS BY MR. OLIVERO:

24        Q.   Good morning, Mr. Mill, my name is Jim
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1 Olivero.  On behalf of the Staff, I'd like to ask you

2 a few questions, actually just about the formula rate

3 template.  In your rebuttal and surrebuttal testimony,

4 you generally discuss the phrase performance-based

5 formula rate structure or protocol.  Do you recall

6 that?

7        A.   Yes.

8        Q.   When you discuss the formula rate structure

9 or protocol, do you mean the same thing as formula

10 rate template?

11        A.   Generally, yes.

12        Q.   Okay.  And are you generally familiar with

13 the Ameren Exhibit 18.1 filed in this docket by Mr.

14 Stafford?

15        A.   Could you describe that exhibit for me?

16        Q.   Sure.  I believe it's a 30-page document

17 that has the -- it's the Ameren Modernization Action

18 Plan - Pricing Index of Spreadsheets in the

19 Determination of the Annual Revenue Requirement

20 Section.

21        A.   That's -- it's -- I guess I would describe

22 it as the surrebuttal formula template populated by

23 Mr. Stafford.

24        Q.   That's how you would describe it?
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1        A.   Well, I'm not -- I'm trying to figure out

2 what you're looking at here.

3        Q.   I'm not going to mark this as an exhibit

4 because I don't really have any others, but --

5             MR. FITZHENRY:  Sure.

6        Q.   (BY MR. OLIVERO) but just so we're on the

7 same page.

8        A.   Yeah, this -- that's what it is.

9        Q.   What you had described before as being the

10 template populated with the information that Mr.

11 Stafford provided is correct?

12        A.   Yes.

13        Q.   Okay.  Now, when you refer to the formula

14 rate template in your testimony, would it be correct

15 that you were referring to the format of the schedules

16 filed in this case by Ameren Stafford as Exhibit 18.1

17 which includes the schedules and the appendices?

18        A.   Yeah.  Generally, yes, and it would include

19 all the formulae that involved in the -- in those

20 schedules as well.

21        Q.   Okay.  So then for like what I just showed

22 you on Ameren Exhibit 18.1, that would contain all of

23 the documents such as the schedules and the

24 appendices?
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1        A.   Yes.

2        Q.   Thank you.  And do you recall when the

3 formula rate template, as you described it, was

4 approved by the Commission?

5        A.   The version Mr. Stafford is using was

6 approved in early June, I believe.

7        Q.   Was that the June 5th, 2013, date?

8        A.   Yes.

9        Q.   Okay.  And would you agree with me that the

10 only schedules that are actually included in the rate

11 modernization or MAP-P Modernization Action Plan

12 Pricing Tariffs are Schedules FR A-1 and FR A-1 REC?

13        A.   I would agree that those two schedules are

14 in Rate MAP, M-A-P, for pricing, but all the other

15 schedules and appendices are also referenced within

16 the same tariff.

17        Q.   Okay.  Just so I'm clear though, the actual

18 schedules themselves are shown within the tariffs just

19 on FR A-1 and FR A-1 REC, correct?

20        A.   Yes.

21        Q.   And would you also agree that any other

22 schedules, appendices, and work papers 1 through 22

23 are actually only listed in the Rate MAP-P Tariff as

24 opposed to the actual format schedules such as the
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1 FR A-1 and FR A-1 REC?

2        A.   Yes.

3        Q.   Would you also agree with me that the

4 Schedules FR A-1 and FR A-1 REC as set forth in the

5 original tariff sheets for Rate MAP-P required data

6 sources from various other formula rates, schedules,

7 and appendices that are considered part of the

8 authorized formulaic rate template, correct?

9        A.   Yes.

10             MR. OLIVERO:  Your Honor, at this time

11 Staff and Company would agree to admit ICC Staff Cross

12 Exhibit No. 1, which is the Data Request Response to

13 TEE 13.04 filed by Mr. Mill on August 8th, 2013.

14        Q.   (BY MR. OLIVERO)  Actually, Mr. Mill, just

15 to follow up, would you also agree that the work

16 papers 1 through 22 are also relied upon for the

17 information that feeds into the formula rates,

18 schedules, and appendices?

19        A.   Yes.

20        Q.   I would just like to refer you to your

21 rebuttal testimony Ameren Exhibit 17.0 page 8 lines

22 167 and 170.  Are you there?

23        A.   Yes.

24        Q.   You recommend that the Commission include a
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1 populated formula template in the appendices to the

2 final order.  Can you identify what specific documents

3 would be included in that populated formula template?

4        A.   Yes, at a minimum, I believe the schedules

5 -- all of the schedules and the supporting appendices

6 could be included.

7        Q.   Okay.  You sound like you're not exactly

8 sure there when you say "could."  Are those the ones

9 that you would expect?

10        A.   Yeah, I -- that would be -- that would be

11 my recommendation.

12             MR. OLIVERO:  That's all the questions I

13 had of Mr. Mill.  Thank you.

14             JUDGE ALBERS:  Ms. Satter.

15             MS. SATTER:  Thank you.

16                    CROSS-EXAMINATION

17 QUESTIONS BY MS. SATTER:

18        Q.   Good morning, Mr. Mill.

19        A.   Good morning.

20        Q.   I've just got a few questions for you.  Do

21 you agree that the formula reflects how the FERC form

22 inputs should be accounted for in determining your

23 revenue requirement?

24        A.   Do you have a reference to my testimony?
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1        Q.   Well, you talk about on page -- surrebuttal

2 pages 2 and 3, you address Ms. Ebrey's comments about

3 the Commission focusing on adjustments rather than the

4 mechanics of the formula.  So my question to you is,

5 is it your understanding or belief that the formula

6 should reflect how the inputs are accounted for?

7        A.   I'm sorry.  I'm struggling a little bit

8 with the phraseology there, how the input should be

9 accounted for.  The way I understand the formula

10 template is that the formula template calls for inputs

11 from a variety of sources that flow into the various

12 appendices and schedules, and it's those sources that

13 one must rely on to populate the formula.

14        Q.   So then if there are accounting

15 adjustments, would they -- would you expect them to

16 take place in those appendices and other sources?

17        A.   So -- So yes, your question goes to if we

18 make rate-making adjustments, if you will, I think

19 that's what you're asking, those take place -- could

20 take place in the work papers, but also there's

21 extensive rate-making adjustments that occur within

22 the appendices to the formula template.

23        Q.   Okay.  So do you think it's important for

24 the work papers and appendices to incorporate the



56

1 appropriate rate-making adjustments for accounting

2 treatments?

3        A.   Yes, that would be the appropriate place

4 for most adjustments to take place.

5        Q.   Rather than in the two-page formula that

6 Mr. Olivero referred to?

7        A.   If you're referencing the two summary

8 schedules that are reflected in the MAP tariff sheets,

9 yes, that's -- that's pretty much just a summary and

10 data from all the prior schedules and appendices flow

11 into those two summary sheets.  So the adjustments

12 have to occur before the summary.

13        Q.   Okay.  And if there's something on FR A-1

14 or FR A-1 REC that makes a reference to a -- to an

15 input that does not accurately reflect costs, would

16 that then require a change to the formula assuming,

17 hypothetically, that that situation arose?

18        A.   Based on your example, that's -- I believe

19 that that would require a change to the template.  If

20 it was not anticipated, the current formula template,

21 and now that's a new source for an input, then that

22 would require a template change.

23        Q.   But would a change on -- for example, a

24 Schedule C-1 would not implicate a change to the
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1 formula itself; is that correct?

2        A.   In most cases if you're assuming the

3 Commission makes adjustment to reduce an expense item

4 because the cost is not reasonable amount, for

5 instance, then yes, that -- that lower expense on C-1

6 would then be reflected in the summary template A-1.

7        Q.   Without a change to the summary template?

8        A.   Correct.

9        Q.   Okay.  Now, do you agree that if an

10 accounting adjustment would reflect actual costs, the

11 formula rate should be changed to accommodate that

12 adjustment?

13        A.   To the extent the present formula template

14 does not anticipate that accounting change or formula

15 change, then it would require a change in template.

16        Q.   I want to ask you just a couple minor

17 questions on your rebuttal.  You talk a little bit

18 about the prior Ameren formula rate case 12-0001 and

19 0293, I think the number was.  Those cases did not

20 involve a calculation of the reconciliation revenue

21 requirement; is that correct?

22        A.   That's correct.

23        Q.   I want to ask you about the depreciation

24 rate change that's been discussed in this case.  It's
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1 in your Rebuttal Testimony at page 8.  My question is,

2 does the current presentation by Ameren currently use

3 the 2012 actual depreciation rate from the 2012 FERC

4 Form 1?

5        A.   Yes.

6        Q.   And is it also correct that the other cost

7 inputs for the rate year are taken from the 2012 FERC

8 Form 1?

9        A.   For the most part, yes.  The rate year --

10 the filing year revenue requirement does pick up 2013

11 plan additions and related costs to that as well.

12        Q.   All right.  But I was asking about the 2012

13 costs.

14        A.   Yes.

15        Q.   Okay.  And you also talk about a change to

16 the treatment of uncollectibles.  This is in your

17 rebuttal at page 12.  Does Ameren currently have an

18 uncollectibles rider?

19        A.   Yes, it does.

20        Q.   And will the proposed change to the

21 treatment of uncollectibles in this case affect

22 recovery of uncollectible costs through the rider?

23        A.   My understanding is that it would not.

24        Q.   Now, the adjustment would increase the
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1 company's collection of uncollectibles from consumers,

2 correct?  One million dollar adjustment, 1.2.

3        A.   For the reconciliation period, yes.

4        Q.   Okay.  So how -- how does that affect

5 reconciliation -- excuse me -- the uncollectible

6 rider?  If that adjustment were not made, what would

7 be different?

8             MR. FITZHENRY:  I'm sorry.  If what

9 adjustment wasn't made?

10             MS. SATTER:  The uncollectible -- the

11 uncollectible adjustment to the revenue requirements

12 for the rate.

13             MR. FITZHENRY:  In this case?

14             MS. SATTER:  In this case.

15             MR. FITZHENRY:  He's referring to the

16 reconciliation year, is that what you mean as well?

17             MS. SATTER:  Wherever the change is made.

18             MR. FITZHENRY:  Okay.  All right.

19        Q.   (BY MS. SATTER)  Maybe we should step back.

20 Was the change to the rate year or to the

21 reconciliation?

22        A.   The change was to the reconciliation period

23 to reflect the amount of uncollectibles included in

24 rates charged during that reconciliation period, and
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1 the bad debt rider, the uncollectible rider, actually

2 trues up to the actual uncollectible costs incurred by

3 the Company, and actually going forward is going to be

4 on a net basis, net write-off formula basis, any --

5 account 904 uncollectibles.

6             So you -- the concern, I think originally,

7 was that there was a danger of reconciling twice for

8 uncollectibles, but my view is that I believe it only

9 gets reconciled truly one time, and that is through

10 the rider mechanism, the uncollectible rider

11 mechanism.

12        Q.   So when you say the uncollectible costs

13 will be recovered on a net basis, are you setting off

14 then the amounts collected in base rates plus the

15 amount collected in the reconciliation year compared

16 -- those two items compared to the costs?

17        A.   That's my understanding, but I am -- I'm

18 not an expert on the uncollectible rider.

19             MS. SATTER:  Okay.  Can you just refer me

20 to the appropriate witness then?

21             MR. FITZHENRY:  Might ask Mr. Stafford, but

22 again I don't know if that falls within the scope of

23 his testimony.

24        Q.   (BY MS. SATTER:)  Oh, okay.  So you're not
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1 sure whether when the uncollectible rider is

2 calculated, both the reconciliation amounts and the

3 amounts collected to date are included?

4        A.   If you're just talking about the

5 reconciliation rider --

6        Q.   Yes.

7        A.   Excuse me.  The bad debt rider, is that --

8        Q.   Yes.

9        A.   -- the basis for the question?  Each year

10 there's a look back to compare the actual net

11 write-offs for uncollectibles to the amount recovered

12 through rates, and that's always trued up so that's

13 there's no over or under recovery once that -- that

14 true-up is completed under the bad debt rider

15 mechanisms.  That's my understanding of it.

16        Q.   Would it be correct to say that the Company

17 does not intend to true-up the bad debt rider twice?

18        A.   That -- that's the intention to true it up

19 once through the rider.

20        Q.   And so whatever changes might be required

21 to the bad debt rider would be made subsequent to this

22 case?

23             MR. FITZHENRY:  Could you be more specific

24 about what changes?  Are you talking about actual
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1 language changes or just in the reconciliation

2 process?

3             MS. SATTER:  Whatever changes are necessary

4 to avoid a double recovery, whether it's --

5             MR. FITZHENRY:  Well, I'm not so sure that

6 assumption or that foundation has been laid that there

7 needs to be actual changes to the tariff, but again I

8 would point out that Mr. Mill has said -- I think he's

9 doing his best to answer questions about a rider which

10 is not really addressed in his testimony, and many of

11 these questions could have been asked of the Company

12 in discovery.  I'm just going to suggest that there's

13 been no foundation laid for your question.  So I

14 object.

15             MS. SATTER:  Long way around to object.

16             MR. FITZHENRY:  Well, you know, I was going

17 to get there eventually.

18             (BY MS. SATTER:)  The witness said the

19 intention was to be sure that the true-up of the bad

20 debt rider doesn't -- bad debt expense doesn't happen

21 twice.  So I guess the -- let me rephrase the

22 question.  Does the Company intend to take any action

23 -- any further action to assure that that doesn't --

24 that the bad debt costs is not trued up twice?
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1             JUDGE ALBERS:  Does that get around your

2 objection?

3             MR. FITZHENRY:  Yes, it does.

4             JUDGE ALBERS:  Okay.

5        A.   My answer is I -- sitting here right now, I

6 don't know of any additional actions the Company would

7 take in that regard.

8             MS. SATTER:  Thank you.  I have no further

9 questions.

10             JUDGE ALBERS:  Okay.  Did you have any

11 redirect?

12             MR. FITZHENRY:  Can I just have a few

13 minutes with Mr. Mill?

14             JUDGE ALBERS:  All right.  I'll have the

15 chief clerk turn off the phone.

16               (Discussion off the record.)

17             JUDGE ALBERS:  Back on the record.  Did the

18 Company have any redirect?

19             MR. FITZHENRY:  We have no redirect.

20             JUDGE ALBERS:  That's the end of the matter

21 of Mr. Mill's testimony.

22                    (Witness excused.)

23             JUDGE ALBERS:  Any objection to the

24 admission of Ameren Exhibit 17 and 25?
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1                   Hearing none, they are admitted.

2                        (Ameren Exhibits 17 and 25

3                         admitted.)

4             JUDGE ALBERS:  And any objection to the

5 admission of Staff Cross Exhibit 1?

6             MR. FITZHENRY:  None.

7             JUDGE ALBERS:  All right.  Then that too is

8 admitted.  Thank you.

9                        (ICC Staff Cross Exhibit 1

10                         admitted.)

11             MR. FITZHENRY:  Thank you.

12             JUDGE ALBERS:  And did Staff give a copy of

13 Cross Exhibit 1 -- Did you get that?  Okay.  Great.

14                   Our next witness is Ms. Voiles.

15             MR. DEARMONT:  The Company would call

16 Jacqueline Voiles to the stand.

17             JUDGE YODER:  Mrs. Voiles, were you

18 previously sworn?

19             THE WITNESS:  Yes, I was.

20             JUDGE YODER:  Thank you.

21                  *    *    *    *    *

22                    JACQUELINE VOILES,

23 having been duly sworn, was examined and testified as

24 follows:
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1                    DIRECT EXAMINATION

2 QUESTIONS BY MR. DEARMONT:

3        Q.   Good morning, Ms. Voiles, how are you?

4        A.   Good morning.

5        Q.   I just said it, but would you please state

6 your name for the record?

7        A.   My name is Jacqueline Voiles, V as in

8 Victor, o-i-l-e-s.

9        Q.   Give us your business address.

10        A.   200 West Washington Street, Springfield,

11 Illinois 62701.

12        Q.   By whom are you employed, and in what

13 capacity?

14        A.   I'm employed by Ameren Illinois as Senior

15 Director of Regulatory Affairs.

16        Q.   Ms. Voiles, did you prepare and cause to be

17 filed on July 29, 2013, certain rebuttal testimony

18 labeled as Ameren 16.0 and the accompanying schedule

19 labeled as Ameren 16.01?

20        A.   It was Ameren Exhibit 16.0 and Ameren

21 Exhibit 16.1.

22        Q.   16.1.  Thank you --

23        A.   That's correct.

24        Q.   -- for that clarification.  Do you have any
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1 corrections to either of those exhibits?

2        A.   Yes, I have one correction to Ameren 16.0,

3 line 264.  Currently that line reads, Docket No.

4 12-0293, and lines 207 dash 201.  201 should be 210.

5        Q.   Any other changes or corrections?

6        A.   No.

7        Q.   Okay.  If asked the same questions today as

8 contained in Ameren Exhibit 16.0, would your answers

9 be the same?

10        A.   Yes, they would.

11        Q.   Did you also prepare and cause to be filed

12 on September 5th, 2013, certain surrebuttal testimony

13 labeled as Ameren Exhibit 26.0?

14        A.   Yes.

15        Q.   Do you have any corrections to that

16 testimony?

17        A.   No, technically I don't have a correction,

18 but one thing that I would like to point out in that

19 particular piece of testimony is with regard to the

20 response to Mr. Mike Ostrander, the expenses at issue

21 are with regard to SFIO, and the Company has agreed in

22 this particular proceeding not to recover those

23 particular costs at this time.

24        Q.   And the discussion you reference from your
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1 surrebuttal testimony that begins on page 15 of 22,

2 correct?

3        A.   That's correct.

4        Q.   Okay.  The agreement that you referenced,

5 has that been memorialized in a discovery response?

6        A.   Yes, it has.

7        Q.   If I understand your testimony correctly,

8 you no longer view the SFIO fees to be part of a

9 contested issue?

10        A.   That's correct.

11        Q.   Do you have any other changes, edits, or

12 corrections to your surrebuttal testimony?

13        A.   No.

14        Q.   Subject to the clarification that you just

15 provided, if you were asked the same questions today

16 as contained in your surrebuttal testimony, would your

17 responses be the same?

18        A.   Yes, they would.

19             MR. DEARMONT:  Judge, I have no further

20 questions and would move for the admission of Ameren

21 Exhibits 16.0, 16.1, and 26.0 and tender the witness

22 for cross.

23             JUDGE YODER:  Thank you.  We'll address the

24 admissibility following cross, and Staff has reserved
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1 cross.

2             MS. SWAN:  Thank you.

3                    CROSS-EXAMINATION

4 QUESTIONS BY MS. SWAN:

5        Q.   Good morning.  My name is Kimberly Swan.

6 I'm here representing the Staff of the Illinois

7 Commerce Commission.  I have a few questions for you

8 based on your rebuttal testimony, which is Ameren

9 Exhibit 16.0.  You provide testimony regarding Staff

10 witness Ms. Pearce's proposed adjustment to reduce AIC

11 credit card charges in this proceeding; is that

12 correct?

13        A.   That's correct.

14        Q.   And you provide similar testimony on Ms.

15 Pearce's proposed adjustment to reduce AIC's credit

16 card charges in ICC Docket 13-0192; is that correct?

17        A.   That's correct.

18        Q.   And did Ms. Pearce propose the same

19 adjustment to reduce AIC's credit card charges in both

20 ICC Docket No. 13-0192 and in this instant proceeding?

21        A.   Yes, her exhibit dealt with the same credit

22 card charges.  There was a different amount broken out

23 electric versus natural gas.

24        Q.   Okay.  And are Ms. Pearce's adjustments
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1 contested in both ICC Docket No. 13-0192 and this

2 instant proceeding?

3        A.   That's correct.

4        Q.   And do you recall being asked

5 cross-examination questions on this proposed

6 adjustment in ICC Staff -- excuse me -- ICC Docket No.

7 13-0192?

8        A.   Yes, I do.

9        Q.   Okay.  I have here what I will mark as ICC

10 Staff Cross Exhibit 2.0, and the Staff and the Company

11 have agreed to enter this into the record.  It is the

12 Cross transcript from ICC Docket 13. or -0192.

13             Again referring to your rebuttal testimony,

14 Ms. Voiles, on page 9, starting at line 180, your

15 rebuttal testimony says that there are 17 expense type

16 categories.  Can you please tell us what those

17 categories are?  I see you've listed some of them, but

18 I don't believe you've listed all 17.

19        A.   Yes, those expense types are air

20 fares/airline fees, equipment/carts, hotels,

21 licensing, maintenance, repairs and service,

22 meals/entertainment, membership-civic,

23 membership-trade/individual, membership-corporate,

24 office supplies, parking, taxi, tips , tolls, and
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1 fares, purchases-other, purchases-equipment/parts,

2 registration, conference and training, tools, vehicle

3 rental, vehicle rental fuel.

4        Q.   Thank you.  And to your knowledge and in

5 your supervisory capacity, can you please describe the

6 types of charges that would not be approved generally?

7        A.   Well, when an employee fills out an expense

8 report, there are drop-down boxes.  So your purchases

9 would have to fall into one of these categories.  As

10 far as expenses that would not be approved -- if

11 that's what you were asking me about.

12        Q.   Yes.

13        A.   If you, for instance, use your corporate

14 credit card mistakenly for a purchase, so instead of

15 pulling out your personal credit card, you pulled out

16 your corporate credit card, that would not be

17 approved.  In fact, you would have to submit a

18 negative expense report for that particular item.  So

19 in those particular instances, that's one example of a

20 charge that would not be approved.

21        Q.   Okay.  So is there a standard process

22 undertaken by supervising personnel in determining

23 whether a credit card charge should be approved or

24 not?
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1        A.   Yes.  Speaking from a supervisor's

2 perspective, I look at an employee's expense report,

3 look at the business justification for those charges,

4 and insure that the proper justification is there

5 before I approve those charges.

6        Q.   And are there any standards for what the

7 proper justification would have to be?

8        A.   Yes, they have to be business-related

9 expenses.

10        Q.   And this process that you go through, is

11 that a standard process that other supervisors would

12 go through as well?

13             MR. DEARMONT:  I'm going to object to the

14 term "standard process" as vague and ambiguous.  Do

15 you mean is that incorporated into some type of

16 policy, or is it practice?  Can you differentiate that

17 term for me?

18        Q.   (BY MS. SWAN:)  Sure.  When I say standard

19 practice, I'm referring to any sort of companywide

20 written procedure or guidelines, handbooks, anything

21 of that nature.  I don't know what you might have, but

22 something along that nature where supervisors could

23 refer back to have their decisions be more

24 standardized along the lines of what you said that you
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1 did, Ms. Voiles.

2        A.   There is a corporate credit card policy

3 that employees and -- all employees have to abide by

4 that corporate credit card policy, and that's part of

5 the policy.  There's employee responsibility.  So the

6 specific employee that has that corporate credit card

7 has a responsibility, and so does the supervisor who

8 is approving those charges.  So there is a policy in

9 place at the Company.

10        Q.   Okay.  And so do those policies preclude

11 any types of purchases?

12        A.   Yes, they do, and that comes back to the

13 employee's responsibility as well as the supervisor's

14 responsibility in looking at those charges.  So you

15 have to -- when you get a credit card statement, you

16 do have to look at the charges that are on that --

17 that list of transactions insure that those charges

18 were incurred, that they were business-related

19 expenses, and if not, you have to take care of the

20 charges in a negative expense report to take those off

21 of the Company recovering those -- those costs.

22        Q.   And are you aware of any charges by the

23 employees in your department that have not been

24 approved?
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1        A.   No, but I can tell you that I have looked

2 at some expense reports and I have not approved them

3 until the proper justification has been listed and I

4 fully understand what those charges were for.  So yes,

5 I have rejected expense reports before.

6        Q.   But in following up, you've approved every

7 expense report?

8        A.   Yes, once it's been documented that it was

9 a proper business expense.

10        Q.   But there's never been an instance that you

11 found that there was an expense report that you needed

12 to not approve?

13        A.   No, there hasn't.

14        Q.   And can you tell us how you personally

15 determine what a business-related expense is?

16        A.   Well, if there's a hotel charge, for

17 instance, on an employee's expense report, I want to

18 fully understand what the business reason was for that

19 hotel expense.  So the business justification has to

20 support that expense, and that's for every expense

21 that's listed on that employee's expense report.

22        Q.   And are you aware of any charges for any

23 other department that have not been approved by an

24 AIC's supervisory personnel?
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1             MR. DEARMONT:  Object to the extent that

2 calls for speculation.

3             MS. SWAN:  Just if she knows.

4             JUDGE YODER:  You can answer to the extent

5 you have any knowledge that would respond to Ms.

6 Swan's question.

7        A.   I don't have any general knowledge.

8        Q.   (BY MS. SWAN:)  I have here what I've

9 marked as ICC Staff Cross Exhibit 3, a data request

10 from Ameren to Staff regarding some expenses that were

11 submitted for approval.

12             Ms. Voiles, have you had a chance to --

13             MR. DEARMONT:  Judge, I'm remiss to lodge

14 an objection before counsel proceeds with questioning,

15 but based on my quick review, it looks as though this

16 is an ICC Staff response to a data request 15.07

17 issued by the Court.  As a preliminary matter, I

18 believe any discussion along these lines may recall --

19 excuse me -- call for and require Ms. Voiles to

20 discuss what appears to me to be hearsay.  These are

21 clearly out-of-court statements.  I believe they're

22 being offered in court to prove the truth of the

23 matter asserted.  I believe that's definitionally --

24 the definition of hearsay.
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1             MS. SWAN:  At this point, your Honor, this

2 is -- I would not like to submit this to prove the

3 truth.  I would like just simply to ask Ms. Voiles her

4 opinion based on this -- this response.

5             MR. DEARMONT:  If I may respond, I believe

6 that counsel could attempt to proceed along those

7 lines, but as a -- I believe we may have some

8 foundational issues here.  I don't know that Ms.

9 Voiles relied upon these responses or supplemental

10 responses in any way, shape, or form in formulating

11 her testimony and/or opinion in this case.  So I

12 believe there may be some preliminary foundational

13 issues here.

14             MS. SWAN:  At this point I haven't had a

15 chance to ask Ms. Voiles if she's familiar with this

16 document.  I intended to do that.

17             MR. DEARMONT:  Understood.

18             JUDGE YODER:  Just to be clear for the

19 record, this is Staff's response --

20             MS. SWAN:  That's correct

21             JUDGE YODER:  -- that you're filing to an

22 Ameren data request?

23             MR. DEARMONT:  That's correct.  So we'll

24 perhaps withdraw the objection and preserve it subject
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1 to the questions.

2             JUDGE YODER:  With that, you can lay any

3 foundation.

4        Q.   (BY MS. SWAN:)  Thank you.

5             Ms. Voiles, are you familiar with the

6 document that I've handed to you?

7        A.   I read these responses for the first time

8 this morning.

9        Q.   But you have had a chance to review them?

10        A.   Not in a lot of detail, but yes, I have

11 read it.

12        Q.   Okay.  Based on your professional opinion,

13 do you agree with the responses made by Staff to this

14 data request?

15        A.   No, I do not.

16        Q.   Can you explain your answer, what you don't

17 agree with?

18        A.   Well, I can explain my answer for each

19 individual response if that's what you would like.

20        Q.   That would be wonderful.  I believe the

21 first response dealt with a charge for flowers.

22        A.   Yes, that's correct.

23        Q.   And what about Staff's response do you not

24 agree with as to the flowers?
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1        A.   The flowers that are at issue are for

2 employees and/or family members who have lost -- you

3 know, who are deceased, and in this particular

4 instance Staff points out that employees could send

5 around, for instance, an envelope, and send flowers

6 based on the amount that they collect for those

7 flowers.

8             The part that I don't agree with is that

9 yeah, that is definitely the case.  You can send

10 around an envelope, but when you lose a loved one, and

11 you get a flower arrangement from the Company that

12 says Ameren Illinois Company, it says a lot about the

13 organization, and as an employee who's lost someone

14 that's been very dear to me, and I got a floral

15 arrangement that was from Ameren, it means a lot to

16 the employee, and it shows that the Company cares, not

17 just the department that you work for, but the entire

18 Company cares about you as an employee, and then that

19 helps from a retention perspective, retaining those

20 employees at the organization because they feel like

21 they are a valued employee.

22        Q.   Okay.  Moving on to the next type of

23 expense, Staff indicated that it believed new employee

24 pens, coffee mugs, travel cups, coasters, and gift
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1 packets were excessive.  Could you explain why you

2 think those are not excessive?

3             MR. DEARMONT:  Sorry.  Again I'm going to

4 object.  I believe she's reading hearsay into the

5 record.  Ms. Voiles has said she doesn't agree with

6 these assessments, and I don't believe she's relied on

7 them in any way, shape, or form in formulating her

8 testimony and her opinion in this matter.

9             MS. SWAN:  I could rephrase.

10             JUDGE YODER:  Well, you could rephrase, but

11 the question is -- We understand these are at issue.

12 I'm not sure how we're being helped by -- I mean is it

13 -- are you -- is there a reason you can't just

14 cross-examine Ms. Voiles on her testimony rather than

15 a Staff data request or Staff response to an Ameren

16 data request?  Is this -- if you're using it to

17 clarify and not moving this into evidence, that's one

18 thing, but --

19             MS. SWAN:  I think I'd just like to

20 rephrase the question if you don't mind.

21             JUDGE YODER:  Okay.  Try that.

22        Q.   (BY MS. SWAN:)  Ms. Voiles, moving on to

23 the second category from the first being flowers, can

24 you explain why you don't agree with Staff's response
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1 as laid out in this document?

2        A.   The reason that I don't agree with Staff on

3 these items is because for the most part these items

4 have information with regard to safety.  In fact, it

5 says Focus on Safety.  Safety is of paramount

6 importance to our Company, not only for our employees,

7 but it translates into lower costs for customers.  So

8 I don't agree that these costs should be disallowed.

9        Q.   Okay.  And in your opinion can you explain

10 why expenses for lunches, cakes, snacks, doughnuts,

11 and decorations for parties should be recovered?

12        A.   I think that you have to put all of these

13 types of expenses in the right context.  So a lot of

14 these cakes, snacks, those types of items are being

15 provided during safety meetings, and again safety is

16 extremely important to an organization not only for

17 its employees but for its customers.  So from that

18 perspective, you have to put each of these items in

19 the right context.

20        Q.   And in your opinion can you explain why

21 expenses for lunch and drinks for attorneys should be

22 recovered?

23        A.   I think that you have to look at -- in this

24 -- with this particular item the context as well.  If
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1 it was an out-of-town situation, those costs are

2 allowable.

3        Q.   And in your opinion can you explain why

4 expenses for DVD players, flat-screen televisions, and

5 satellite television service, hardware, and

6 accessories should be recovered?

7        A.   Yes.  Let me talk about our operating

8 centers and the use of flat-screen televisions and

9 satellite service.  We have field employees that

10 include linemen and gas men who don't have cubicles

11 that they report to.  They congregate in the operating

12 center the beginning of the day, they come in and out

13 of the facility throughout the day.  We have weather

14 service that's showing on these televisions in a

15 general area that employees can see what the weather

16 is like.  They can see if there's a storm approaching.

17 These employees don't have Smartphones, they don't

18 have access to the Internet during normal business

19 hours, and so it's a way for them to see what's going

20 on with the weather.  Also, if there are newsworthy

21 events, those are being broadcast as well.  So that

22 our employees are aware if there's some issue with

23 regard to electric or natural gas outside of our

24 territory that they should be made aware of.
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1             So it does provide service for the

2 customers by insuring that our employees are very well

3 aware of what's going on with regard to the weather.

4 So that's why they should be recoverable.

5        Q.   All right.  And in your opinion can you

6 explain why clothing expenses should be recovered?

7        A.   In this particular instance as well as

8 others, it's very important for customers of Ameren to

9 understand that they're talking to an Ameren Illinois

10 employee.  So having the logo on clothe makes a lot of

11 sense from a customer perspective.

12             These particular charges were for

13 flame-retardant clothing which is important for the

14 safety of our employees.  So from that perspective,

15 they should be recoverable.

16        Q.   It was my understanding that some of this

17 clothing expenses included T-shirts and hooded

18 sweatshirts; is that correct?

19        A.   That's correct, and they were

20 flame-retardant clothing.

21        Q.   Okay.  And in your opinion can you explain

22 why certain finance charges for cash advances on

23 American credit card or Ameren credit cards should be

24 recovered?
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1        A.   Being allowed to have a cash advance

2 through your credit card is very limited to a storm

3 situation, and this was a storm situation where the

4 employee went to Commonwealth Edison's territory to

5 help restore service to the Commonwealth Edison's

6 customers.  These costs were recovered through

7 Commonwealth Edison as any mutual response charge

8 would be recovered.  So it is very limited in nature,

9 and this was one instance that there was a finance

10 charge assessed by the bank.

11        Q.   When you say limited, is it -- these

12 charges are only for storm charges or when there are

13 storms?

14        A.   Yes, that's my understanding.

15        Q.   And that's the only allowable instance?

16        A.   That's my understanding.

17             JUDGE ALBERS:  Just a clarification while

18 you're consulting there, the clothing you referenced,

19 you're saying that all the clothes bought with the

20 credit cards were flame-retardant?

21        A.   That's my understanding, Judge.  That's the

22 information that I have in front of me.

23             JUDGE ALBERS:  Okay.

24             MR. DEARMONT:  If I may help, can we tie
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1 this discussion to a line item on other schedules or

2 perhaps Ms. Pearce's?  It may clarify the magnitude of

3 this clothing discussion.

4        A.   If you look at Ameren Exhibit 16.1 --

5             MR. LANNON:  Objection, your Honor.

6             MR. DEARMONT:  To the extent it's not

7 helpful, I will withdraw the question and -- point or

8 however you want to characterize it.

9             MR. LANNON:  Was he being helpful to you,

10 or is he crossing his own witness?

11             JUDGE ALBERS:  I think he was trying to

12 clarify the questioning that I heard as far as what

13 clothing was bought because the flame-retardant issue

14 is new to me.

15             JUDGE YODER:  We'll save your thought

16 for --

17             MR. DEARMONT:  If it's not helpful, we

18 don't need to go there, your Honor.

19             JUDGE YODER:  You can bring it up on

20 recross.

21             MR. DEARMONT:  Noted.  Thank you.

22             JUDGE YODER:  If Staff wants to further

23 elaborate on their cross, we'll cross that bridge when

24 we come to it.
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1        Q.   (BY MS. SWAN:)  Sure.  I just have one last

2 question.

3             Ms. Voiles, bear with me, I'm working on

4 some very old knowledge, but it's my understanding

5 that most items of clothing have some level of flame-

6 retardant characteristics.  Does the clothing that

7 were purchased have any higher level of

8 flame-retardant characteristics than a normal piece of

9 attire?

10             MR. DEARMONT:  I think that calls for

11 speculation, but --

12        Q.   (BY MS. SWAN:)  Well, to your knowledge.

13        A.   Can you repeat that question?

14        Q.   Sure.  It's my understanding that all items

15 of clothing have to meet some minimum standards for

16 safety of flame-retardant characteristics.  Do the

17 items that were purchased under this category have any

18 higher flame-retardant characteristic than the minimum

19 required for all clothing items?

20             MR. DEARMONT:  To the best of her

21 knowledge?

22        Q.   (BY MS. SWAN:)  To the best of your

23 knowledge.

24        A.   I don't have that information.
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1        Q.   Okay.  So there was to your knowledge no

2 specific additional labeling or costs associated with

3 this flame-retardant characteristic?

4        A.   The only thing that I have in front of me

5 is the Employees Credit Card Expense Report, and the

6 justification listed says, management FR clothing.  So

7 it -- it is very specific that it references FR.

8        Q.   And FR stands for flame-retardant?

9        A.   Yes, it does.

10        Q.   And all of the clothing fell within that

11 category?

12        A.   I'm relying on the Employees Expense

13 Report.

14        Q.   The indication is that all of them --

15        A.   It's for the total amount of the purchase.

16             MS. SWAN:  I have no further questions.  So

17 I'd like to move for the admission into evidence of

18 ICC Staff Cross Exhibit Nos. 2 and 3.

19             JUDGE YODER:  Any objection?

20             MR. DEARMONT:  I have no objection to 2.  2

21 is the transcript, correct?

22             MS. SWAN:  That's correct.

23             MR. DEARMONT:  And I do again have an

24 objection to the admission and entry of Staff Cross
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1 Exhibit 3 for reasons I previously articulated, and I

2 believe the appropriate foundation was not laid and/or

3 that it constitutes hearsay, if being relied upon for

4 the substance of the matter asserted.

5             JUDGE YODER:  All right.  Well, Staff, do

6 you have anything further on this one?

7             MS. SWAN:  Sure.  I do believe that Ms.

8 Voiles indicated she was familiar with this document

9 so I think we have laid an appropriate foundation.  To

10 the extent that I would like to move this into the

11 record, I think that's for purposes of completeness.

12 We've referenced a lot of what Staff's opinion was.

13 Ms. Voiles indicated she did not agree.  Without this

14 in the record, it would be impossible to discern what

15 Ms. Voiles disagrees with.

16             JUDGE YODER:  Well, Staff Exhibit 2 will be

17 admitted into evidence in this docket.  Staff Cross

18 Exhibit 3, admission is denied at this point.  I don't

19 find that proper, and I think Staff is able to conduct

20 their cross-examination without the admission of that

21 in the record, and Staff has rested.

22                        (ICC Staff Cross Exhibit 2

23                         admitted.)

24             JUDGE YODER:  I believe the Attorney
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1 General has reserved cross.  Ms. Satter.

2             MS. SATTER:  We have no questions in light

3 of the change in Ms. Voiles' testimony.

4             JUDGE YODER:  Do you have a question?

5             JUDGE ALBERS:  Yes, I do.

6             JUDGE YODER:  Judge Albers has a question

7 for you, Ms. Voiles.

8             JUDGE ALBERS:  Just listening to the

9 question -- to the questioning from Ms. Swan, is there

10 -- if an employee is, you know, on the clock and

11 decides they need something, they can just pull out --

12 for something they need during the day, they can pull

13 out their credit card and pay for whatever?

14             THE WITNESS:  There are certain capitalized

15 items that you can't use the corporate credit card

16 for.

17             JUDGE ALBERS:  Like if they're just on the

18 road and stop for gas, they can buy some snacks for

19 the rest of the way, and -- I mean is there any

20 parameters on this?  What constitutes

21 business-related?  I realize I'm asking multiple

22 questions here.  I apologize.  I'll back up a little

23 bit.  I object to myself.  Why am I here?  Yeah.  I'm

24 trying to get a better grasp of what the limits are
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1 when you say it's as long as it's business-related?

2 Can you help me with that?

3             THE WITNESS:  Right.  If an employee is --

4 First of all, we have several policies within the

5 organization.  One of the policies is if you drive

6 more than 150 miles in one day, you have to get a

7 rental car, and so if that's the case, then the charge

8 for the rental car is appropriate and the cost for the

9 gas, and you would use the -- your corporate credit

10 card for the gas to put in that -- in that rental car.

11 If you're working during normal business hours and you

12 have your personal car, and you're not traveling on

13 business, none of those costs are allowed.

14                   Say, for instance, you are using

15 your car and you're going 30 miles, you will list the

16 mileage in your expense report, but as far as snacks

17 go, that -- you know, that's not considered a

18 necessary expense.  I mean when you travel 30 miles

19 for a business meeting.  So you have to use -- you

20 know, as an employee you have to take some

21 responsibility, and as their supervisor you have to

22 take the responsibility as well determining what

23 constitutes a legitimate business expense .

24             JUDGE ALBERS:  Okay.  Well, focusing on
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1 that scenario, I'm driving 30 miles to a business

2 meeting so I drive my own car, and I have to pay for

3 my own gas?

4             THE WITNESS:  Well, it's -- you are paying

5 for your own gas because you put the miles in your

6 expense report, and based on the amount per mile that

7 you're reimbursed, that includes everything.

8             JUDGE ALBERS:  Okay.  So do employees have

9 per diem when they go somewhere for business?

10             THE WITNESS:  No, they don't.

11             JUDGE ALBERS:  Okay.  I think that helps.

12 Thank you.

13             JUDGE YODER:  Do you have any cross, or do

14 you want to speak to Ms. Voiles?

15             MR. DEARMONT:  I think we can do it now,

16 but just very briefly.

17             JUDGE YODER:  Okay.

18                   REDIRECT EXAMINATION

19 QUESTIONS BY MR. DEARMONT:

20        Q.   Ms. Voiles, you've answered a few

21 questions, being both those directed to you from the

22 judge and counsel for Staff about what I'll call

23 policies and procedures; is that fair?

24        A.   Yes.



90

1        Q.   Okay.  And those policies and procedures,

2 those are the subjects of the currently pending

3 spinoff docket docketed as 13-0075; correct?

4        A.   That's correct.

5        Q.   You and counsel for Staff discussed some

6 disallowances that were made for purchases of

7 clothing.  Do you remember that discussion generally?

8        A.   Maybe you can help me out a little bit.

9        Q.   You just remember having that discussion,

10 we talked about flame-retardant clothing, correct?

11        A.   That Staff is recommending disallowing?

12        Q.   Correct.

13        A.   That's correct.

14        Q.   Correct.  And I just -- if you would, can

15 you tell us to the best of your knowledge how many

16 clothing-related disallowances are being offered

17 and/or contested in this proceeding, specific to Ms.

18 Pearce's adjustments?

19        A.   I want to double check my notes on that

20 real quickly.

21        Q.   Sure.

22             MS. SWAN:  Sorry.  Can we have some

23 indication of what Ms. Voiles is looking at?

24             THE WITNESS:  Yes, I'm looking at Ameren
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1 Exhibit 16.1.

2             MS. SWAN:  Thank you.

3        A.   Yes, there is one adjustment that Staff is

4 recommending related to clothing.

5        Q.   (BY MR. DEARMONT:)  Is that found on line

6 85 of what has been marked as Ameren Exhibit 16.1?

7        A.   Yes, it is.

8        Q.   That adjustment is in the amount of

9 $181.66?

10        A.   That's correct.

11        Q.   That's described as management FR clothing,

12 two T-shirts plus one hooded sweatshirt with Ameren

13 Illinois logo?

14        A.   That's correct.

15             MR. DEARMONT:  Okay.  I have no further

16 questions.

17             JUDGE YODER:  Okay.  Thank you.  Allow some

18 limited recross.

19             MS. SWAN:  Nothing further.  Thank you.

20             JUDGE YODER:  Okay.  Thank you.  Is there

21 any objection to the admission of Ameren Exhibit 16.0,

22 Ameren Exhibit 16.1, or Ameren Exhibit 26.0?

23                   Hearing nothing -- Hearing no

24 objection, those will be admitted into evidence in
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1 this docket.

2                        (Ameren Exhibits 16.0, 16.1, and

3                         26 admitted.)

4             JUDGE YODER:  Thank you, Ms. Voiles.  You

5 may step down.

6                        (Witness excused.)

7             JUDGE YODER:  Does the AG still think they

8 have about a half hour for Mr. Heintz?

9             MS. SATTER:  Yes.

10             JUDGE YODER:  Why don't we go ahead and

11 break now for lunch, come back at 1:00 and take care

12 of Mr. Heintz and Mr. Kennedy.

13                        (A lunch break was taken.)

14             JUDGE ALBERS:  Go back on the record.  Had

15 our lunch, and our next witness is David Heintz.

16                  *    *    *    *    *

17                      DAVID HEINTZ,

18 having been duly sworn, was examined and testified as

19 follows:

20             JUDGE ALBERS:  Mr.  Heintz, you were

21 previously sworn, correct?

22             THE WITNESS:  Correct.

23             JUDGE ALBERS:  Thank you.

24
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1                    DIRECT EXAMINATION

2 QUESTIONS BY MS. CONGER:

3        Q.   Good afternoon, Mr. Heintz.  Please state

4 your full name and business address for the record.

5        A.   David Heintz.  Business address is 293

6 Boston Post Road West, Suite 500, Marlborough, Mass.

7 01752.

8        Q.   And by whom are you employed?

9        A.   Concentric Energy Advisors.

10        Q.   What is your job title?

11        A.   Vice-president.

12        Q.   Thank you.  I have what's marked as -- I

13 have what's marked as AIC Exhibit 15.0 and 23.0.  Are

14 these documents your rebuttal and surrebuttal

15 testimony in this proceeding?

16        A.   They are.

17        Q.   Were these documents prepared by you or

18 under your supervision?

19        A.   They were.

20        Q.   If I ask you each of the questions in the

21 written testimony today, would your answers be the

22 same?

23        A.   They would.

24        Q.   Is the information contained in this
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1 testimony true and correct to the best of your

2 knowledge?

3        A.   It is.

4             MS. CONGER:  At this time, your Honor, I

5 would move for the admission of Mr. Heintz' rebuttal

6 and surrebuttal testimony into the record and tender

7 him for cross-examination.

8             JUDGE ALBERS:  All right.  We'll address

9 the admissibility following cross-examination.  Mr.

10 Sameer -- or I'm sorry, Mr. Doshi.

11                    CROSS-EXAMINATION

12 QUESTIONS BY MR. DOSHI:

13        Q.   Thank you, your Honor.

14             Mr. Heintz, good afternoon.

15        A.   Good afternoon.

16        Q.   My name is Sameer Doshi.  That's spelled

17 S-a-m-e-e-r.  Doshi is D-o-s-h-i.  I work for the

18 Attorney General's office, and if you don't mind, I

19 have a few questions for you about your rebuttal and

20 surrebuttal testimony.

21        A.   Certainly.

22        Q.   Thank you.  As you know, your testimony

23 concerns payment lead times for the Energy Assistance

24 Charge, which I will refer to as EAC if you don't
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1 mind, and the Municipal Utility Tax, which I will

2 refer to as MUT if you don't mind.  Could I please

3 direct you to page 5 of your rebuttal testimony,

4 Exhibit 15.0 at line 89.

5        A.   Yes, I have that.

6        Q.   There you state that in the Company's

7 direct testimony an expense lead of 14 days for the

8 MUT was assigned; is that correct?  Does that

9 characterize your rebuttal testimony?

10        A.   That is correct.

11        Q.   And if you turn to page 7 at line 148, you

12 state that the lead lag study determined that the

13 Company had access to MUT funds for 14 days; is that

14 -- does that accurately characterize your rebuttal

15 testimony?

16        A.   Yes.

17        Q.   Thank you.  Now, please turn to page 9 of

18 your rebuttal testimony at line 172.  You refer to an

19 old ICC proceeding -- well, starting at line 171 you

20 refer to an old ICC proceeding 11-0282 in which, as

21 you state, the ICC applied or adopted an expense lead

22 of 15 days for the MUT.  Then you state that this is

23 consistent with the position espoused by the Company

24 in this proceeding.
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1        A.   Yes.

2        Q.   Thank you.  Please then turn to page 11 of

3 your rebuttal testimony at line 200.  You state that,

4 I recommend that an expense lead day of 15 days -- I'm

5 paraphrasing slightly -- I recommend that an expense

6 lead day of 15 days be applied to the MUT.  Does that

7 accurately characterize your testimony?

8        A.   That's what it says.  It should probably be

9 14 days.

10        Q.   14.  Okay.  Thank you.

11        A.   Thanks for pointing that out.

12        Q.   And at line 13 -- I'm sorry, page 13 of

13 your rebuttal testimony at line 253, you state that --

14 or, rather, starting at line 252, you state that the

15 Company has access to MUT funds for approximately 15

16 days prior to remitting the funds to the taxing

17 authorities.  Does that accurately characterize your

18 testimony?

19        A.   That is what the testimony states, and

20 again it should be 14.

21        Q.   Okay.  So to be clear, the Company's

22 position in this proceeding is that the correct

23 expense lead for the MUT is 14 days; is that correct?

24        A.   That is correct.
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1        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  I'd like to go back to

2 page 6 of your rebuttal testimony, Exhibit 15.0.  On

3 page 6 at line 107, you state that the Company's long-

4 standing practice had been to remit taxes, and I

5 believe here you're referring to the EAC and MUT; is

6 that right?

7        A.   Correct.

8        Q.   Thank you.  So continuing the sentence, the

9 practice -- long-standing practice has been to remit

10 taxes to the taxing authorities based on billings

11 adjusted for debts written off each month.  So would

12 it be fair to say that this practice is in contrast to

13 a hypothetical alternative practice that would be

14 based on cash payments actually received from

15 customers or ratepayers?

16        A.   No.  What it says is the Company's practice

17 for these taxes is to remit them to the taxing

18 authorities after billing rather than as Mr. Ostrander

19 has and Mr. Brosch has suggested that should be done

20 after collection.

21        Q.   And by collection, you mean collection of

22 the pass-through tax amounts from ratepayers?

23        A.   After funds have been received from the

24 customers, that's correct.
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1        Q.   Okay.  My question is -- I'm curious.  Why

2 does the Company follow this longstanding practice as

3 you described it?

4        A.   I don't know.  I wasn't there when they did

5 it, when they started the process, but they -- when it

6 was set up, they started remitting the funds to the

7 taxing authorities based on billings, and they

8 remitted them to the authorities depending on -- well,

9 EAC was by the 15th of the month, and for the MUT

10 taxes, by the 30th of the month after billing.

11        Q.   Thank you.  In your experience as a

12 consultant and analyst in the utility industry, is

13 this a common practice?

14        A.   I couldn't really say.  All I know is that

15 for Ameren, this is the practice they follow.

16        Q.   Do you believe this is a prudent practice

17 for Ameren Illinois?

18        A.   Sure, yes.  I mean it's -- the funds are

19 remitted to the authority, and to my knowledge they

20 have not been -- none of the taxing authorities have

21 ever questioned the amount of the tax or the process

22 for determining the amount of the tax.

23        Q.   Thank you.  If Ameren Illinois held the

24 funds and remitted them at the latest possible date
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1 under the relevant tax laws, would Ameren Illinois

2 receive any financial benefit from holding the funds

3 longer?

4        A.   The lead days would be -- would be longer,

5 and so it would suggest that the Company would have

6 the funds for a longer period of time.

7        Q.   Does a Company or any entity receive a

8 benefit from holding the funds for a longer time

9 rather than a shorter time?

10        A.   I mean there -- obviously there's some --

11 in this case the cash working capital allowance would

12 be lower in that instance.

13        Q.   I'm sorry.  I didn't quite hear your

14 response.  Could you repeat that?

15        A.   Yes, if -- if the -- if the practice was

16 changed and the Company did the remittance based on

17 collections rather than as current case where they

18 actually do practice of billings, then yes, they would

19 hold the funds for a longer period of time, and there

20 would be an impact on the cash working capital.

21        Q.   Okay.  Would the Company be able to realize

22 greater interest from whatever asset vehicle they

23 invested their cash in?

24        A.   If they did, to the extent that they did
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1 so, and they could invest that, then yes.

2        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  I'd like to refer you to

3 page 15 of your rebuttal testimony line 288 in which

4 you state that -- I'm sorry, line 287.  Line 287 you

5 state that, in relation to the -- the approach

6 advocated by Attorney General witness Michael Brosch,

7 you state that counsel advises there may be some legal

8 impediments to the AG approach that warrants further

9 study.  Does that accurately characterize your

10 testimony?

11        A.   Well, what -- the response was in -- to a

12 question that Mr. Brosch said that AIC and ComEd would

13 not be required to skip a month of payments for the

14 EAC and the MUT if the Commission were to adopt his

15 proposal.  What we're saying is that if his proposal

16 would be adopted, the Company would have to -- there

17 would be a change in practice, and there would be a

18 period of time either in missed payment or some other

19 longer period of time worked out with the taxing

20 authorities to -- to switch over from the current

21 practice to a different one.

22        Q.   So is that what counsel advised you might

23 pose a legal impediment?

24        A.   Yes, because we'd have to talk -- we don't
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1 know, you know, what the taxing authorities would

2 prefer to do and whether, in fact, it would even allow

3 us to do it.

4        Q.   Was it counsel who expressed a concern that

5 the relevant taxing authorities might not allow you to

6 remit payment up to the final possible due date?

7        A.   No, what we said here was that if -- if Mr.

8 Brosch's proposal was accepted and there would need to

9 be a change in the Company practice, how that would

10 have to be worked out with the taxing authority has to

11 be investigated, and I don't know -- personally we

12 don't -- I don't know when or how it would approve

13 such a change.

14        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  I'd like to refer you to

15 page 10 of your rebuttal testimony at line 180.

16 Similar to what you just told me, you state that the

17 Company would have to work with the taxing authorities

18 to implement the changes suggested by Mr. Ostrander,

19 and next I'd like to refer you to your surrebuttal

20 testimony, Exhibit 23.0, at page 4 line 60.  The

21 question there is, will the Company incur incremental

22 expense associated with modifying its existing

23 remittance practices, and you state yes, but at this

24 point the Company does not have an estimate of the
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1 incremental expense.  Those two excerpts I just

2 mentioned from your rebuttal and surrebuttal, does

3 that accurately characterize your testimony?

4        A.   Yes.

5        Q.   Can you explain in reference, specifically

6 to the quote from your surrebuttal page 4 line 60

7 through 62, can you explain why there might be an

8 incremental expense in modifying the remittance

9 practices?

10        A.   Certainly.  To make the change in the

11 remittance practice, there would have to be some

12 changes made to the billing system as to how the

13 amounts were accrued and determined and then -- and

14 then paid to authority.  Any time you -- in my

15 experience any time you make changes to the billing

16 system, it requires a certain amount of expense amount

17 and length of time to be able to do the program, the

18 changes necessary, and how much would be necessary we

19 do not know at this point.

20        Q.   Are you able to give us any order of

21 magnitude-based estimate of the incremental expense?

22 Would it be in the order of magnitude of $10,000 or

23 $100,000, or $1,000,000, let's say?

24        A.   I don't know.  We have not -- No study has
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1 been made yet to determine what the nature -- what --

2 how -- what the nature of the changes would be and how

3 much it would cost and implement those changes.

4        Q.   Is it possible the order of magnitude might

5 be as low as $1,000?

6             MS. CONGER:  Objection, asked and answered.

7             MR. DOSHI:  I didn't mention $1,000 in my

8 first question.

9             MS. CONGER:  No, but you did ask if he knew

10 the amount.  He already said no.

11             JUDGE ALBERS:  Speak up a little bit.

12             MS. CONGER:  I'm sorry.  He did ask if Mr.

13 Heintz knew the amount, and Mr. Heintz didn't know the

14 amount.

15             JUDGE ALBERS:  Your response.

16             MR. DOSHI:  I'll withdraw the question.

17             JUDGE ALBERS:  Okay.

18                   Is your microphone on?

19             MS. CONGER:  I believe it is.

20             MR. FITZHENRY:  You're not as loud as me.

21        Q.   (BY MR. DOSHI:)  Mr. Heintz, I'd like you

22 to refer to your surrebuttal again at page 2, line 36.

23 Actually at line 34.  The question there is, to your

24 knowledge did Mr. Ostrander verify with the taxing
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1 authorities his interpretation of the due date for the

2 EAC and MUT.  Your answer there is, no, Mr.

3 Ostrander's proposed adjustment is premised solely

4 upon his interpretation of the instructions associated

5 with the EAC and MUT.  Does that accurately

6 characterize your testimony here?

7        A.   Yes, it does.

8        Q.   Would you agree that there are specific

9 regulations under Illinois law governing when the

10 remittance of these taxes is due?

11        A.   I don't know if there are regulations, but

12 there are instructions accompanying the tax which

13 tells how you how it's determined and how much -- what

14 the percentages are and the timing of the remittance

15 to the authorities.

16        Q.   Do you believe those instructions require

17 interpretations?

18        A.   Yes, I mean you have to understand what

19 they say.

20        Q.   Do you believe an Illinois taxpayer is

21 required to consult with tax authorities before

22 following the instructions?

23        A.   I'm not sure that you have to talk to the

24 authorities, but I mean, you know, the tax returns
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1 have been submitted and accepted by the authorities.

2        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  And when you refer to

3 verifying the due dates and interpretation of the

4 instructions with the taxing authorities, do you mean

5 speaking personally with employees of governmental

6 authorities, or do you mean reviewing relevant tax

7 laws such as -- such as statutes and regulations?

8             MS. CONGER:  Objection.  It's a compound

9 question.

10             MR. DOSHI:  I'll rephrase.

11             JUDGE ALBERS:  Yes.

12        Q.   (BY MR. DOSHI:)  When you refer to

13 verifying with the taxing authorities in line 34, are

14 you referring to personal communication with employees

15 of governmental authorities?

16        A.   Well, as I said, we haven't -- the Company

17 has never had a problem or been informed of a problem

18 with taxing authorities as to the amount of the tax

19 remitted, and now Mr. Ostrander and Mr. Brosch had

20 suggested that we should be changing our practice.  So

21 I don't know, you know, if they have verified or

22 talked to authorities about their problems with our

23 returns or not.

24        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  When you prepared your
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1 lead lag study for revenue -- for calculating revenue

2 lags and payment leads including the EAC and MUT, did

3 you contact employees of taxing authorities to get

4 their opinions about when the EAC and MUT amounts are

5 due?

6        A.   No, but the cash working capital study was

7 based on timing of the Company's cash inflows and

8 outflows, when payments are received and when the

9 amounts are remitted to the taxing authorities.

10        Q.   Is it your opinion that the taxing

11 authorities that you mention at line 34 on page 2 of

12 your surrebuttal have discretion over when taxes such

13 as the EAC and MUT are due?

14        A.   I have no idea what their discretion, if

15 any, is.

16        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  Have you attached to

17 your surrebuttal any correspondence with the taxing

18 authorities or any other documents from the taxing

19 authorities to support your position on when the EAC

20 and MUT taxes are due?

21        A.   No.

22        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  I'd like now to refer

23 you to page 3 of your surrebuttal, Exhibit 23.0.  At

24 line 41, the question says, are the EAC and MUT
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1 returns audited by any -- by any state agency, and

2 your answer is yes, both the EAC and MUT returns are

3 subject to periodic audit.  Does that accurately

4 characterize your testimony?

5        A.   Yes, it does.

6        Q.   When you say they are subject to periodic

7 audit, how frequently has Ameren Illinois' returns in

8 relation to these two taxes been actually audited?

9        A.   It's my understanding that several of the

10 municipal authorities have conducted audits, but to my

11 knowledge the EAC has never been audited.

12        Q.   Do you know how many municipalities have

13 conducted audits of Ameren Illinois's MUT returns?

14        A.   I do not know the exact number, no.

15        Q.   Do you know how frequently the

16 municipalities you mentioned have conducted audits of

17 Ameren Illinois's MUT returns?

18        A.   When I talked to the director of the tax

19 department, he said there had been several.  He did

20 not specify a number.

21        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  At line 45 of your

22 surrebuttal, again on page 3, you state or you -- the

23 question -- Let me back up.  At line 43 the question

24 says, have such audits ever concluded that the Company
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1 is remitting the taxes prematurely, and your answer

2 is, no, the timing of the tax remittance is an issue

3 that has been conjured up by the Staff and the AG

4 witnesses.  Is that your testimony?

5        A.   Yes.

6        Q.   Can you think of a reason why a

7 governmental entity would be unhappy that Ameren

8 Illinois is remitting these taxes earlier than

9 required under the due dates?

10        A.   I can't imagine why they would object.

11        Q.   Thus, assuming Ameren Illinois is remitting

12 the EAC and MUT taxes prematurely, meaning before the

13 legally-imposed due dates, does it strike you as

14 likely that any governmental taxing authority might

15 audit the Company for that reason?

16        A.   They could, but they would also want to

17 necessarily suggest that they might want to audit them

18 to make sure that the correct amount of the tax is

19 being remitted, and, as I said, it's -- there's been

20 no instances of complaints that I know of where they

21 have found that that was the case.

22        Q.   Okay.  From the absence of audits from

23 taxing authorities raising a concern that Ameren

24 Illinois is remitting its taxes too early, can we --
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1 you think it's fair to conclude that Ameren Illinois

2 is paying its taxes exactly on time?

3        A.   There's been no objection to it.  Tacit

4 acceptance, I would say.

5        Q.   So is your answer then yes?

6        A.   There's been no -- As I said as far as to

7 my knowledge there's been no objection to the taxes

8 being remitted to the authorities by Ameren.

9        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  Do you know how many

10 days an Ameren Illinois electric customer has to pay

11 his or her bill?

12        A.   I believe residential customer bills are to

13 be -- are due 21 days after -- after issuance, and

14 there's a shorter period of time for commercial and

15 industrial billings.

16        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  If a customer happened

17 to pay a bill on the date he or she received that bill

18 by sending a check in the mail or providing the

19 electronic debit or whatever method of payment is,

20 would Ameren take any action to remind the customer

21 that he or she was permitted more time to pay the

22 bill?

23        A.   As I say, it states on the bill that it's

24 due within 21 days of issuance.  I don't know that
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1 there is any other notification unless it goes beyond

2 -- goes into late status.

3        Q.   So Ameren would not take any -- would

4 likely not take action to discourage the customer from

5 paying the bill earlier than due date?

6             MS. CONGER:  Objection; relevance, and it's

7 outside the scope of Mr. Heintz' testimony.

8             MR. DOSHI:  Your Honor, the purpose is to

9 show that an entity receiving payment or expecting to

10 receive payment by some legally-established due date

11 would not take any action if the payor paid early.

12             MS. CONGER:  Your Honor, the company's not

13 a taxing authority which is the issue at hand right

14 now.

15             MR. DOSHI:  Your Honor, payment under -- a

16 payment by a customer is -- is, in fact, legally --

17 the due date for a payment by a customer of an

18 electric utility is, in fact, legally established

19 under 83 Ill.  Admin. Code Part 280.90(c).

20             MR. ALBERS:  All right.  Your objection is

21 overruled.

22                   Do you recall the question?

23             THE WITNESS:  No, I do not, sir.

24        Q.   (BY MR. DOSHI:)  I'm sorry.  I'll repeat it
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1 if I remember it correctly.  If a customer paid a bill

2 earlier than the due date, which is 21 days after the

3 bill is received, would -- is it likely that Ameren

4 Illinois would take action to discourage the customer

5 from paying before the due date in future billing

6 cycles?

7        A.   No.

8        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  I'd like to move on to

9 page 5 of your surrebuttal testimony at -- I'm sorry,

10 I made a mistake.  I meant to say page 5 of your

11 rebuttal testimony, Exhibit 15.0 if you don't mind.

12             MR. FITZHENRY:  Page 5?

13        Q.   (BY MR. DOSHI:)  Page 5 of your rebuttal

14 testimony, Exhibit 15.0.  At line 86 -- actually

15 starting at the bottom of page 4, line 85, you state,

16 Mr. Ostrander proposed that the expense lead for the

17 EAC -- now moving to page 5 line 86, the expense lead

18 for the EAC be set at 38.54 days and the expense lead

19 for the MUT be set at 48.54 days.  Does that

20 accurately characterize your testimony?

21        A.   Yes.

22        Q.   Thank you.  Now, if you turn to page 11 of

23 your rebuttal, Exhibit 15.0, at lines 199 and 200, you

24 state on -- I'm paraphrasing slightly -- that Mr.
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1 Brosch proposes expense leads of 38.54 days for the

2 EAC and 48.54 days for the MUT.  Does that accurately

3 characterize your testimony?

4        A.   Yes.

5        Q.   Would you then agree that Attorney General

6 witness Mr. Michael Brosch and ICC Staff witness Mike

7 Ostrander are in agreement regarding the expense leads

8 for the EAC and MUT?

9        A.   They are both proposing the same days for

10 those lead days for those two taxes.

11        Q.   Thank you.  Would you agree that Mr. Brosch

12 and Mr. Ostrander are recommending no change to the

13 expense lead treatment of the EAC and MUT relative to

14 what the Commission approves in dockets -- in Ameren

15 Illinois' most recent formula rate update dockets,

16 12-0001 and 12-0293?

17        A.   Those are the same amounts, yes.

18        Q.   Thank you.  Have you provided with your

19 testimony any documents from any taxing authority that

20 specifically finds fault with the Commission's

21 determination of the payment leads for the EAC and MUT

22 in those two dockets I just mentioned, 12-0001 and

23 12-0293?

24        A.   No, although I doubt that the taxing
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1 authorities were aware of anything that Commission did

2 in the lead lags -- for purpose of lead-lags study.

3             MR. DOSHI:  All right.  I've come to the

4 end of my 30 minutes, and that is the end of my

5 questions.  Thank you very much, Mr. Heintz.

6             THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

7             JUDGE ALBERS:  Anyone else?

8                   Any objection then to Ameren Exhibit

9 -- I'm sorry.  Did you have any redirect?

10             MR. FITZHENRY:  Could we just have a few

11 minutes?

12             JUDGE ALBERS:  Sure.

13             MR. FITZHENRY:  Thank you, your Honor.

14                        (Discussion off the record.)

15             JUDGE ALBERS:  On the record, do you have

16 any redirect?

17             MS. CONGER:  No redirect, your Honor.

18             JUDGE ALBERS:  All right.  Thank you.

19                   Any objection then -- Excuse me.

20 Any objection then to Ameren Illinois Exhibits 15 and

21 23?

22                   Hearing no objection, they are

23 admitted.

24                        (Ameren Exhibits 15 and 23
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1                         admitted.)

2             JUDGE ALBERS:  Thank you, Mr. Heintz.

3             THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

4                        (Witness excused.)

5                  *    *    *    *    *

6                  THOMAS B. KENNEDY, III

7 having been duly sworn, was examined and testified as

8 follows:

9             JUDGE YODER:  Mr. Tucker Kennedy; is that

10 correct?

11             THE WITNESS:  That's correct.

12             JUDGE YODER:  For the record have you been

13 previously sworn?

14             THE WITNESS:  Yes, I have.

15             JUDGE YODER:  All right.  Very well.

16                    DIRECT EXAMINATION

17 QUESTIONS BY MR. KENNEDY:

18        Q.   Mr. Kennedy, can you please state your full

19 name for the record?

20        A.   Yes, Thomas B. Kennedy, III.  Tucker is my

21 nickname.  That's what I go by.

22        Q.   And, Mr. Kennedy, by whom are you employed?

23        A.   Ameren Illinois.

24        Q.   And what is your current title?
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1        A.   Director of Community and Public Relations.

2        Q.   Mr. Kennedy, have you prepared testimony

3 that's been filed in this docket?

4        A.   Yes, I have.

5        Q.   I'll direct you to what's been previously

6 marked for identification as Ameren Exhibit 6.0,

7 Direct Testimony of Thomas B. Kennedy with attached

8 exhibits, Ameren Exhibit 6.1 and Ameren Exhibit 6.2

9 Revised and 6.3 Revised.  Is that your direct

10 testimony, Mr. Kennedy?

11        A.   Yes, it is.

12        Q.   And was that prepared by you or prepared

13 under your supervision?

14        A.   Yes, it was.

15        Q.   Do you have any corrections to that

16 testimony today?

17        A.   No, I do not.

18        Q.   And the answers that were given to the

19 questions in that testimony are true and accurate to

20 the best of your knowledge?

21        A.   Yes, they were.

22        Q.   And if I were to ask the same questions

23 today, would you give the same answers?

24        A.   Yes, I would.
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1        Q.   Do you also have what's been marked for

2 identification as Ameren Exhibit 14.0, the revised

3 rebuttal testimony of Thomas B. Kennedy, 14.0 revised

4 with attached exhibits -- Ameren Exhibit 14.1 to 14.5?

5 Is this your rebuttal testimony, Mr. Kennedy?

6        A.   Yes, it is.

7        Q.   And was this prepared by you or prepared

8 under your direction?

9        A.   Yes, it was.

10        Q.   And the answers to questions that are in

11 the testimony, are they true and accurate to the best

12 of your knowledge?

13        A.   Yes, they are.

14        Q.   And do you have any corrections to that

15 testimony today?

16        A.   No, I do not.

17        Q.   If I were to ask you the same questions

18 today, would you provide the same responses?

19        A.   Yes, I would.

20        Q.   Lastly, do you have what's been previously

21 marked for identification as Ameren Exhibit 24.0, the

22 surrebuttal testimony of Thomas B. Kennedy with

23 attached exhibits, Ameren Exhibit 24.1 revised, Ameren

24 Exhibit 24.2 revised, Ameren Exhibit 24.3 revised,
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1 Ameren Exhibits 24.4 and 24.5 and then Ameren Exhibit

2 24.6 revised, is this your surrebuttal testimony?

3        A.   Yes, it is.

4        Q.   And was that prepared by you or prepared

5 under your direction?

6        A.   Yes, it was.

7        Q.   And are the answers to the questions given

8 there true and accurate to the best of your knowledge?

9        A.   Yes, they are.

10        Q.   And do you have any corrections to that

11 testimony?

12        A.   No, I do not.

13        Q.   If I were to ask the same questions today,

14 would you provide the same responses?

15        A.   Yes, I would.

16             MR. KENNEDY:  Your Honor, I'd like to

17 tender Mr. Kennedy for cross-examination.  It's my

18 understanding that Staff has waived cross.  So direct

19 to the Attorney General.

20             JUDGE YODER:  And we'll discuss the

21 admissibility of his testimony following any cross,

22 and the Attorney General, I believe, is the only party

23 we have for cross.

24             MS. SATTER:  Okay.  Thank you.
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1                    CROSS-EXAMINATION

2 QUESTIONS BY MS. SATTER:

3        Q.   Good afternoon, Mr. Kennedy.

4        A.   Good afternoon.

5        Q.   My name is Susan Satter.  I'm with the

6 Office of the Attorney General.  I just have a few

7 questions for you today.

8        A.   Okay.

9        Q.   I'd like to start with your rebuttal

10 testimony.  That's Ameren Exhibit 14, and on page 5,

11 it appears to me that you're saying that the

12 Commission should allow communications expenses unless

13 there is no ratepayer benefit.  Is that your position?

14        A.   Can you direct me to which question, which

15 lines, please.

16        Q.   I believe it's on page 5, the first

17 paragraph.

18        A.   I'm on Exhibit 14.0.

19        Q.   Yes.

20             MR. KENNEDY:  The first full paragraph.

21        Q.   (BY MS. SATTER:)  I'm sorry.  I'm not

22 finding the exact language.  Do you have an opinion

23 about that?

24        A.   I'm not sure I understand your question.
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1        Q.   So do you think that all communications

2 expenses incurred by the Company should be recoverable

3 from consumers unless there is a showing that there is

4 no ratepayer benefit associated with those

5 communications expenses?

6             MR. KENNEDY:  Well, I'm going to object for

7 several reasons.  First, I think you're asking him a

8 legal conclusion.  That's for the Commission to

9 decide.  Second, you haven't been able to point to any

10 testimony where we discussed this.  I would like to

11 see that before he talks about some opinions that he

12 may or may not have -- that may or may not have been

13 part of his testimony in this case.

14             MS. SATTER:  If I can respond.  Mr.

15 Kennedy's entire testimony on communications expenses

16 is whether or not it's recoverable and to the extent

17 to which there are consumer or ratepayer benefits or

18 not.  If he doesn't have an opinion on that, the

19 question that I asked, then he doesn't have an opinion

20 on it, and I'll accept that answer, but to suggest

21 that that's not the subject of his testimony because

22 there's no precise quote I think is incorrect and

23 misinterprets the notion of cross-examination and the

24 notion of scope.
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1             JUDGE YODER:  We'll overrule the objection,

2 and do you need the question repeated back to you?

3             THE WITNESS:  Yeah, it would be helpful if

4 you could point me to a specific piece of that page so

5 that I can respond directly to your question.

6        Q.   (BY MS. SATTER:)  I've provided you the

7 best I can, which is the part of your testimony where

8 you discussed whether or not communications expenses

9 are recoverable, which is on pages 4, 5, and I believe

10 it goes all the way through 7.  It's a long -- you

11 talk about it at some length actually.

12        A.   Yeah, those --

13        Q.   But the question to you --

14        A.   Uh-huh.

15        Q.   -- was whether you believe that the

16 Commission must allow recovery of communications

17 expenses unless there is no ratepayer benefit

18 associated with those communications expenses.

19        A.   It is our position to educate our

20 customers, to provide them with information that they

21 can use to be safe consumers of our product, and to do

22 that in a way that enables them to manage their energy

23 use and to save money.  All of our communications

24 executions are done with the goal in mind of providing
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1 education and information to customers.  So the

2 information that we've submitted and the expenses that

3 we've submitted unless we've otherwise removed them

4 from the recoverability question, we believe are

5 recoverable under the statute.

6        Q.   So you attempt to provide information and

7 education to consumers that they can use; would that

8 be a fair characterization?

9        A.   Yes.

10        Q.   Okay.  And do you think it is possible for

11 a utility to spend an unreasonably large amount on an

12 otherwise allowable expense?

13        A.   You had me until the end.  Can you

14 rephrase, just -- I didn't understand the very last

15 part of your question.

16        Q.   If an expense is allowable, let's say it's

17 a communication expense to -- to provide consumers

18 with information that they can actually apply and use.

19        A.   Right.

20        Q.   Is it possible that a utility can spend so

21 much on that communication that it becomes

22 unreasonable?

23        A.   I don't believe that within the constraints

24 of our budget it is possible to spend enough money to
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1 educate customers on the items that I mentioned

2 earlier.  We have 1.2 million electric customers in

3 our service territory.  Not all of them have Internet

4 access.  Not all of them respond, and are available to

5 receive information in the same channels.  So a

6 company of our size with the service territory that we

7 have and the breadth of customers throughout that

8 territory, it's incumbent upon us to utilize whatever

9 resources we have available to us to be able to make

10 sure that we are educating and providing them with

11 information.  I do believe that the expenses that we

12 have incurred in this case are reasonable and prudent

13 and are worthy of recovery.

14        Q.   But from your answer, I get the impression

15 that you think that the Company can spend a lot more

16 and it would still be reasonable because really

17 there's so much information to convey?

18        A.   Yeah.

19        Q.   Is that a fair characterization?

20        A.   I don't believe -- You're -- you're talking

21 to a communicator, and so I don't believe that it is

22 -- you can ever over-communicate with your customers,

23 especially as it relates to important issues such as

24 -- such as safety as one example.
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1        Q.   Now, in your testimony at page 6, lines 113

2 and 114, I believe also on line 20 line 133, you talk

3 about providing information to consumers so they can

4 control or manage their energy use.  Is that right?

5        A.   Mind if I read it real quick?  Ma'am, do

6 you mind if I read it?

7        Q.   Oh, not at all.

8        A.   Okay.  You mentioned lines 113 through 117,

9 I believe, and then there were a couple other lines

10 you mentioned that I'd like to refer to.

11        Q.   120.

12        A.   Okay.

13        Q.   133, 134.

14        A.   Okay.

15        Q.   At line 171 you say, what matters to

16 consumers is how AIC intends to spend that money and

17 what benefits consumers will receive?

18        A.   Yes.

19        Q.   So my question is, is part of the

20 investment that you're communicating about the

21 advanced meter infrastructure investment; in other

22 words, the advanced meters installation?

23        A.   Yeah, we are communicating about the future

24 installation of advanced meters and what that will



124

1 mean for customers, and there's a number of other

2 elements of the infrastructure modernization program

3 that we are telling customers about what we're doing.

4        Q.   Do the AMI meters enable consumers to

5 better manage their energy use than they could in the

6 past?

7        A.   When the meters are fully functional,

8 meaning all of the requisite back ends networking

9 capabilities are there, then ultimately consumers will

10 have at their fingertips -- at -- at their -- within

11 their -- their own domains, realtime up-to-date

12 information that they can utilize to make decisions on

13 when to utilize energy and ultimately take control and

14 save money.

15        Q.   And when is that expected to occur?

16             MR. KENNEDY:  Objection.  This is not

17 within the scope of his testimony.  He's not here to

18 testify as to the AMI plan.

19             MS. SATTER:  He's a communicator.  My

20 understanding is that the communications are to enable

21 people to manage their energy.  I think he should

22 understand what tools the Company is offering to

23 enable customers to do that.  It seems fully within

24 the scope of his testimony.  So I would hope you would
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1 overrule the objection.

2             MR. KENNEDY:  Well, I want to make clear he

3 is here as the communication director.  There are

4 certain communication expenses that are at issue in

5 this case.  For instance, the ones you're talking

6 about to him now on these pages refers to adjustments

7 that Staff had that's already been withdrawn in this

8 case that don't relate to the adjustment Mr. Brosch is

9 proposing.  So I'd prefer that you -- if we're going

10 to talk about communications, we stick to the ones

11 that are at issue in this proceeding for 2012.

12             JUDGE YODER:  Well, I'll overrule the

13 objection and allow him to answer if he's aware of

14 when AMIs are to be fully functional, I believe was

15 the question, if he's aware.

16        A.   It is a multi-year program, and I believe

17 from 2014 through 2019, we will be implementing

18 advanced meters throughout our territory.

19        Q.   (BY MS. SATTER:)  Do you know if that's the

20 fourth quarter?  Does it begin in the fourth quarter

21 of 2014 if you know?

22        A.   What element beginning?

23        Q.   The AMI installations.

24        A.   Meaning the actual meter or --
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1        Q.   Yes.

2        A.   It is my understanding that the meters will

3 begin to be installed in the latter half of 2014.  I

4 can't tell you the exact quarter.

5        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  Now, attached to your

6 Exhibit 14, is -- Exhibit 14.3, and is it correct that

7 14.3 contains Simantel costs that you label as

8 potentially comparable disallowed costs?

9        A.   Yes.

10        Q.   Do you believe that the information

11 contained on Exhibit 14.3 is sufficient to allow the

12 ALJs and the Commission to make a specific

13 determination of whether the invoiced service is

14 recoverable?

15        A.   It was our intention to provide the

16 Commission and the ALJs with enough information about

17 the nature of the expense, the reason for the expense,

18 as much as we could about all elements of that

19 particular -- of those particular expenses so that we

20 could enable the ALJs and the Commission to make a

21 requisite determination about whether or not those

22 costs are recoverable.

23        Q.   And would the same hold true for your

24 description on Ameren Exhibit 14.5 of the Simantel
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1 costs of public relations?

2        A.   Can you repeat that question, please?

3        Q.   Do you believe that the information that

4 you provided on Ameren Exhibit 14.5 is sufficient to

5 allow the ALJs and the Commission to make a specific

6 determination as to whether or not the invoiced

7 services constitutes recoverable costs?

8        A.   Yes.

9        Q.   All right.  I had another question on line

10 -- on page 46, lines 966 to 967.  You refer --

11        A.   Oh.  Ma'am --

12        Q.   Of your rebuttal testimony.

13        A.   Would you repeat the lines for me.

14        Q.   Sure.  It's page 46 at the very bottom.

15 The answer is 966 and 967, and my question is simply,

16 you refer to an important customer-based publication.

17 Can you describe what that is?  Is there a -- does it

18 have a title?

19        A.   Mind if I take a moment to read it?

20        Q.   Not at all.

21        A.   This predated my time at the Company, but

22 as I understand it, this was a publication that was

23 intended to educate customers about the impact of the

24 utility company services on the environment and steps
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1 the company is taking to mitigate the environmental

2 impact of our services.

3        Q.   So the environmental impact of the

4 generation of electricity; is that correct?

5        A.   The environmental impact of our delivery

6 services.

7        Q.   Do you know what the environmental impact

8 of the delivery services is?

9        A.   There are a number of services that we

10 provide as a company as it relates to getting

11 alternative sources of energy and making customers

12 aware of what those services are.  Distributive

13 generation we call that.  So if a customer, for

14 instance, is interested in putting up solar panels and

15 having solar energy delivered to their home, it is our

16 obligation as an energy delivery company to let the

17 customers know if that option's available to them and

18 what steps they need to take to make that a reality

19 for them.  By doing that, of course, it does have an

20 environmental impact reduction on -- it does have an

21 impact on the environment.

22        Q.   So the publication talks about the impact

23 on the environment of using generation supplies other

24 than what the company provides?
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1        A.   I'm not familiar with everything that the

2 publication references.

3        Q.   Now, how long have you been with Ameren

4 Illinois?

5        A.   I joined in May of 2012, early May.

6        Q.   And do you work for Ameren Illinois?

7        A.   Correct.

8        Q.   Okay.  Do you do any work for Ameren

9 Missouri or the generation company when it was part of

10 Ameren?

11        A.   Do work for.  Can you be more specific,

12 please?

13        Q.   Do you do any work for them in terms of

14 determining their communications needs?

15        A.   No, I do not.

16        Q.   Now, turn to your surrebuttal testimony.

17 I'd like to ask you about a few exhibits.  I'm going

18 to mark AG Cross Exhibit 1 and AG Cross Exhibit 2.

19 Okay.  I have given you AG Cross Exhibit 1, which is a

20 copy of Schedule C-21 that I understand Mr. Stafford

21 included as part of the Company's filed schedules.  Do

22 you agree that the amounts on line 5 are the Public

23 Relations expenses that are the subject of your

24 testimony?  That would be in column 2012 as shown on
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1 the right.

2             MR. KENNEDY:  I mean I'll object just

3 because he didn't prepare the schedules, and there's

4 no foundation for him having reviewed this before.

5        Q.   (BY MS. SATTER:)  I'll ask the witness.

6 Are you familiar with the Public Relations expenses of

7 the Company?

8        A.   Yes.

9        Q.   Okay.  Are you familiar that what account

10 number the Public Relations expenses are booked to?

11        A.   Yes, I am.

12        Q.   And is that account No. 930.2?

13        A.   Yes, it is.

14        Q.   Are you familiar with the schedules that

15 are filed in rate cases or in this case in particular,

16 the Schedule Cs that are filed in these cases?

17        A.   Vaguely.

18             MS. SATTER:  Okay.  Maybe I'll ask counsel,

19 can you accept subject to check that this document

20 that we've marked as AG Cross Exhibit 1 is Schedule

21 C-21 of the Company's standard filing requirements?

22             MR. KENNEDY:  I mean I'm not going to agree

23 that the document can come in through Mr. Kennedy

24 since he did not prepare it.  So I'm not going to
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1 agree to that.

2             MS. SATTER:  Okay.  AG Cross Exhibit 2 is

3 Schedule C-8.  If you would like, we will direct those

4 questions to Mr. Stafford, and it can come in through

5 him.

6             MR. KENNEDY:  Yeah, I would appreciate that

7 if you'd reserve those for him.

8        Q.   (BY MS. SATTER:)  Mr. Kennedy, do you know

9 the size of Ameren's public relations budget -- Ameren

10 Illinois's public relations budget in any of the years

11 prior to the year that you began working for the

12 Company?

13        A.   I have a general notion of what the budget

14 was, but I'm not familiar with the specifics of the

15 years prior.

16        Q.   Would you agree with me that the -- that

17 the amount that was spent in 2012 was more than twice

18 the size of the budget in the preceding year?

19        A.   According to Schedule C-21.

20        Q.   Well, I'm asking if you know because

21 according -- because your counsel doesn't.

22             MR. KENNEDY:  Are you asking him if the

23 numbers on the paper appear to be doubled?

24             MS. SATTER:  I was asking him if he knew as
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1 a public relations director that the budget has

2 increased substantially under his tenure.

3        A.   I would answer -- I will say yes to your

4 question.

5        Q.   (BY MS. SATTER:)  And you were aware that

6 the budget had increased substantially before sitting

7 here today and looking at the schedule?

8        A.   Yes.

9        Q.   Did you know by how much it had increased?

10        A.   Approximately, yes.  Approximately.

11        Q.   By how much did you understand the budget

12 increased under your tenure?

13        A.   A little more than half -- a little more

14 than twice.

15        Q.   More than twice?

16        A.   Uh-huh, a little more than twice.

17        Q.   And did that happen after you started at

18 the Company in -- when did you say it was, in May?

19        A.   Now, the budget would have been established

20 before I arrived --

21        Q.   Okay.  So you didn't --

22        A.   -- in 2012.

23        Q.   So you didn't change the budget?

24        A.   No.
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1        Q.   But you spent the budget?

2        A.   Not personally.

3        Q.   You were responsible for that?

4        A.   Correct.  I managed the department that has

5 the responsibility for communications.

6        Q.   Okay.  Now, I'd like to turn your attention

7 to your Exhibit 24.3.

8        A.   Yes.

9        Q.   Now, that exhibit shows five pages of

10 invoice charges captioned as Costs 12-0293 Potentially

11 Comparable Disallowed Costs.  Are we in the same

12 place?

13        A.   Pardon me?

14        Q.   Are you there?

15        A.   Yes.

16        Q.   Okay.  Are all of the listed charges in

17 this exhibit amounts that Ameren Illinois paid

18 Simantel in 2014 that were charged to public relations

19 expense in 2012?

20        A.   No.

21        Q.   Okay.

22        A.   It's 2012.  You said --

23        Q.   I'm sorry?

24        A.   You said 2014.
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1        Q.   2012.

2        A.   You said in 2014.

3        Q.   I'm sorry.  Maybe I misspoke.  Are all of

4 the listed charges in this exhibit amounts that Ameren

5 Illinois paid Simantel in 2012 that were charged to

6 the electric public relations expense in 2012?

7        A.   Yes.

8        Q.   Okay.  Did you review all of the charges

9 from Simantel in order to decide to characterize these

10 particular invoices as potentially comparable to costs

11 that were disallowed in Docket 12-0293?

12        A.   Yes.  It was our intention again to provide

13 as much background context on the nature of the

14 expenses recognizing that potentially comparable

15 expenses were disallowed in the prior case with the

16 intention that we would have enough of a basis to make

17 the case that these particular expenses were

18 recoverable.

19        Q.   Okay.  So you identified -- you yourself

20 identified them as potentially comparable, correct?

21        A.   We self-identified those, but we were not

22 given explicit parameters so we did make some

23 assumptions.

24        Q.   Now, is it correct that the total public
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1 relations charges from Simantel for Ameren Illinois

2 electric was $743,635?

3        A.   Yes.

4        Q.   And the total charges including gas were

5 even more, right?

6        A.   Yeah, the allocation factor for gas would

7 increase that number.

8        Q.   Okay.  And now, on page 5 of Exhibit 24.3,

9 the total amounts that you quantified as potentially

10 comparable is $99,479, right?

11        A.   Correct.

12        Q.   Okay.  Now, do you have Mr. Brosch's

13 testimony with you by any chance?

14        A.   No, I do not.

15        Q.   Okay.  If I could approach the witness, I'd

16 just like to ask him if the $99,479 is the same amount

17 that he identified in AG Exhibit 1.5, which is the

18 copy of the company's response to AG 2.11.  So make

19 sure it's -- Is this exhibit and this response to the

20 data request the same figure and represent the same

21 invoices as you've identified in 24.3?

22             MR. KENNEDY:  Is there an amount on this

23 that you can point him to?

24        A.   I just want to make sure I'm understanding
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1 your question.  Are you saying are these comparing the

2 same invoices and expenses?

3        Q.   Yes.

4        A.   I believe so.

5        Q.   I just wanted to make sure that we're

6 talking about the same universe of invoices and the

7 same expenses.

8        A.   Sure.  Okay.

9        Q.   And that is correct?

10        A.   I believe so.

11        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  And the $99,479 amount

12 is the total electric expense on 24.3 before the

13 allocation to deliver these services; is that right?

14 It's the gross amount before the allocation between

15 distribution and transmission?  Do you know?  If you

16 don't know --

17        A.   I don't know.

18        Q.   Okay.

19        A.   Ma'am, can you ask that question again --

20        Q.   Let me do it this way.

21        A.   -- because I think I may have better data.

22        Q.   Refer to page 19 of your surrebuttal

23 testimony, line 387.  And in light of that, would you

24 agree that the 99,479 amount is the total prior to the
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1 allocation to distribution?

2        A.   Okay.  Which line?  I'm on page 19.

3        Q.   387.

4        A.   I can answer this way.  I would say 99,479

5 is the amount of potentially -- what's the term --

6 potentially comparable expenses that we submitted but

7 for the electric portion.

8        Q.   Okay.  Now, turning back to 24.3, in your

9 column F, for two lines, line 12 and 19, it says

10 agreed to disallow.  Does that mean that the Company

11 agrees that it is -- it is accepting disallowance of

12 those two invoices?

13        A.   We're self-disallowing those invoices for

14 recoverability.

15        Q.   Now, do you recall whether the Company has

16 public relations expenses related to its energy

17 efficiency programs?

18        A.   Yes.

19        Q.   Okay.  And are the energy efficiency

20 programs called Act on Energy?

21        A.   Yes.

22        Q.   And do you know whether Ameren Illinois has

23 an energy efficiency rider for the recovery of energy

24 efficiency-related costs?
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1        A.   Yes.

2        Q.   Do you know whether any of these -- Well,

3 let me back up.  Does it have such a rider?

4        A.   Yes.  I believe so.

5        Q.   And do you know whether any of these costs

6 are recovered through the energy efficiency rider?

7        A.   Which costs?

8        Q.   Costs related to Act on Energy.

9             MR. KENNEDY:  I'm going to object to his

10 personal knowledge and suggest that Mr. Stafford would

11 be the person to ask that question to.

12             MS. SATTER:  Well, Mr. Kennedy, it

13 describes the costs on 24.3, and he specifically

14 refers to energy efficiency costs; for example, at

15 line 13.

16             MR. KENNEDY:  No, I understand he's quite

17 knowledgeable on that.  I just -- to the extent that

18 the Company removes certain costs and puts them

19 through the rider, I'm not sure Mr. Kennedy is the

20 appropriate person that is in charge of doing that

21 accounting.

22             JUDGE YODER:  I think he's free to indicate

23 that if he's not the person to have this question

24 posed to him.  That's -- I will disallow the --
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1 overrule the objection, and you can if you're -- if

2 you're aware, you can answer.

3        A.   Yeah.  I am aware of the rider.  I'm not an

4 accountant and would defer a question like that to

5 someone who is more familiar with how the tariff and

6 the rider work on energy efficiency.

7        Q.   (BY MS. SATTER)  so sitting here today you

8 don't know if any of these public relations costs that

9 reference energy efficiency have been recovered

10 through the rider?  You just don't know?

11        A.   Correct.

12        Q.   Now, if I can direct your attention to line

13 9 of 24.3, the description of that cost is design and

14 produce wordmarks for internal departments?

15        A.   Okay.

16        Q.   And is a wordmark like a graphic that's

17 done in text form like a logo?

18        A.   They're similar.

19        Q.   So a wordmark is like a logo; is that fair?

20        A.   Yeah, it's not always a logo, but it's

21 similar to a logo.

22        Q.   Okay.  And this is to develop essentially

23 logos for internal departments; is that correct?  Is

24 that what you're saying there?
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1        A.   That's what the exhibit states.

2        Q.   So that would be for customer service or

3 meter reading?

4        A.   Not familiar with the exact internal usage

5 for a wordmark.

6        Q.   It says here to recognize AIC personnel.

7 Do you mean to recognize them so that you know the

8 person's identity or to recognize them for doing

9 something extraordinary?

10        A.   Based on this exhibit, it's hard for me to

11 tell which context it is.  It could be either.

12        Q.   Now, at line 13, in column E, the

13 description says, update the methane to megawatts

14 educational TV message.  Isn't it correct that Ameren

15 Illinois's distribution systems does not turn methane

16 into megawatts, if you know?

17        A.   I don't know.

18        Q.   Do you know that Ameren owned generation

19 facilities in 2012?

20        A.   Do I know that they did or if they did?

21        Q.   Do you know if they did?

22        A.   Yes.

23        Q.   Did they?

24        A.   Yes.
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1        Q.   Okay.  And do you also understand, do they

2 currently own generation facilities?

3        A.   Technically yes, it's -- there's a pending

4 transaction.

5        Q.   And isn't it correct that in March of 2013,

6 Ameren announced it would be divesting its energy

7 generation facilities to Dynegy; isn't that correct?

8        A.   I believe so.

9        Q.   But in 2012 Ameren owned generation

10 facilities?

11        A.   Ameren Corporation, correct.

12        Q.   Thank you.  Now, line 14 refers to clean

13 coal messaging.  Is that correct?

14        A.   Yes.

15        Q.   Do you agree that Ameren Illinois buys

16 electricity from various sources but doesn't generate

17 electricity itself?

18        A.   Ameren Illinois is a deliverer of

19 electricity to customers.

20        Q.   So then Ameren Illinois does not produce

21 clean coal, isn't that correct, or produce energy

22 using clean coal?

23        A.   That's correct.

24        Q.   Lines 16 through 25 and I believe 27 to 29
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1 all have to do with placing print ads to describe

2 Ameren's economic impact on its service area.  Do you

3 believe that Ameren's spending on capital projects and

4 O&M in Illinois have a favorable impact on economic

5 development in the state?

6        A.   Can you please repeat that?  I'm sorry.

7        Q.   Do you believe that Ameren spending on

8 capital projects in Illinois will have a favorable

9 impact on the economic development within the state?

10        A.   Is it possible for you to narrow in for me

11 what you mean by capital projects?  Are you talking

12 about infrastructure projects that we would undertake?

13 Are you talking about a capital project that a

14 manufacturer might undertake that we would support,

15 which -- I want to get the context of what type of

16 capital.

17        Q.   No.  No.  I guess -- well, my question to

18 you more generally is when you say Ameren's economic

19 impact in its service area, what do you mean?

20        A.   Our 43,000 square mile area of service to

21 residential, commercial, industrial customers.

22        Q.   So you say, for example, line 28, I believe

23 this is column E, place print ad educating and

24 describing Ameren's economic impact of service area,
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1 and then it goes on, learn about Ameren's support of

2 economic development in greater St. Louis area.  Are

3 you referring there to customers' use of electricity?

4        A.   Again not -- I'm not intimately familiar

5 with the exact expense, but I can -- I can presume

6 that what this refers to is talking about the

7 investments that the Company's making to create jobs,

8 to improve its infrastructure, and this particular

9 expense and placement was in a shared media market.

10 So the Metro East St. Louis area for us is one of our

11 largest markets where we have a large number of

12 customers.  Many people on the Illinois side of the

13 river read the media from the Missouri side of the

14 river, and so it's an opportunity to provide them with

15 an educational message utilizing a channel that we

16 know that they are currently reading.

17        Q.   So Ameren Missouri provides service on the

18 other side of the river, on the Missouri side?

19        A.   Correct.  Yes.

20        Q.   So this particular $10,000 expense for the

21 print ad has been allocated to Ameren Illinois; is

22 that correct?

23        A.   That particular portion of that ad.  Are

24 you talking about the 10,352, that would have been our
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1 allocation for that ad?

2        Q.   Do you know how much the total cost for

3 that ad was?  Do you know how much the total cost for

4 full pages?

5        A.   Depends on the media.  I don't -- I'm not

6 familiar with the placement rates for that

7 publication.

8        Q.   So are these ads intended to show how

9 Ameren Illinois enhances the economic development of a

10 particular area?

11        A.   These ads are intended to demonstrate the

12 -- demonstrate to customers and stakeholders that

13 Ameren Illinois is an organization that is providing

14 economic opportunity and jobs for area citizens that

15 invest in its infrastructure and creates economic

16 impact and that supports the growth of other

17 businesses, industrial customers, commercial

18 customers, by being a collaborator in their growth,

19 and so this particular opportunity is to let customers

20 and others know what our role in economic development

21 is.

22        Q.   And you would agree that the public

23 generally believes that economic development is a good

24 thing?
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1        A.   Yes.

2        Q.   And do you agree that these ads are

3 intended to associate Ameren Illinois with a positive

4 message about economic development in the public eye?

5        A.   I would agree that communicating about job

6 creation and investments in our region are inherently

7 positive.

8        Q.   And communicating about job creation,

9 that's different from running ads and specifically for

10 hiring?  Isn't that -- aren't the costs for running

11 ads for hiring placed in a different account --

12        A.   It depends --

13        Q.   -- if you know?

14        A.   Yeah, it depends on the nature of your ad.

15 I think what you're referring to is a typical

16 classified ad.  In reality today organizations do not

17 place many classified ads.  They do that all digitally

18 and online.  No, this particular execution or expense

19 is communicating with customers about the role that

20 the Company plays in economic development and the

21 associated jobs that are created and by its nature

22 will make the Company a more attractive place to work

23 and help us grow our talent base which is important to

24 us to be able to serve our customers.
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1        Q.   Okay.  Now, do you think that the economic

2 development impacts of the Company's investments and

3 hiring practices will occur whether or not the Company

4 draws the public attention to these benefits?

5        A.   I don't know.

6        Q.   Now, do you recall or are you familiar with

7 the discussion surrounding the passage of the Energy

8 Infrastructure Modernization Act?

9        A.   Yes.

10        Q.   Would you agree with me that there was some

11 controversy surrounding the passage of that act?

12             MR. KENNEDY:  Objection.  That's

13 argumentative.

14             MS. SATTER:  Excuse me.

15             MR. KENNEDY:  It's argumentative.

16             MS. SATTER:  I don't think it's -- I'm

17 asking.  He can say yes or no.  I didn't -- one way or

18 the other.

19             JUDGE YODER:  Find another word other than

20 controversy.

21        Q.   (BY MS. SATTER:)  Do you believe that there

22 was differences of opinion concerning whether the

23 General Assembly should adopt the provisions of the

24 Energy Infrastructure Modernization Act?
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1        A.   Would you mind if you gave me an example of

2 who -- which parties might -- --

3        Q.   Okay.

4        A.   -- that way.

5        Q.   Do you -- do you recall whether there was,

6 for example, letters to the editor in any Illinois

7 papers concerning the passage of that act?

8        A.   Can you refer me to the time frame you're

9 talking about because there are multiple elements --

10        Q.   2011.  I'm sorry?

11        A.   Because there were multiple elements of

12 that legislation; some of that predated my time coming

13 to the Company.

14        Q.   I understand that.  That would be -- It

15 would start in 2011 through 2013.

16        A.   So were there letters to the editor that

17 were --

18        Q.   That would indicate public debate or

19 disagreement about the terms of the law.

20        A.   I would -- I would answer that there were

21 likely different viewpoints on the merits of the

22 legislation positive and -- pro and con.

23        Q.   So you would agree that there were some

24 people who were against the passage of that bill?
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1        A.   I would agree.

2        Q.   Turning back to your testimony --

3             MR. KENNEDY:  Ms. Satter, can I ask how

4 much longer cross-examination?

5             MS. SATTER:  I do have some questions

6 concerning a data request response that the Company

7 agreed we could submit for the record, so I wanted to

8 ask some questions about that.  Would you like to take

9 a break?

10             MR. KENNEDY:  No, I was just wondering

11 because you marked down 30 minutes.  I think we've

12 gone for a lot longer than that already.  I'm just

13 curious.

14             JUDGE YODER:  Is that the Group Cross

15 Exhibit or something else?

16             MS. SATTER:  Yes.  Yes.

17             JUDGE YODER:  Okay.

18        Q.   (BY MS. SATTER:)  So I do have some

19 questions on that.  Now, you did not attach any copies

20 of advertisements to your pre-trial testimony, did

21 you?

22        A.   I know we submitted examples.  I'm not sure

23 pre-file or post-file.  I don't remember the term.

24        Q.   Do you recall whether you submitted any
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1 examples of public relations materials as part of your

2 testimony, your written testimony?

3        A.   Yes.  Yes.

4        Q.   Okay.  And did you primarily describe the

5 public relations materials?

6        A.   Can you please rephrase that question?

7        Q.   Well, let me ask it this way.  Which

8 examples did you provide as part of your testimony of

9 public relations materials?

10        A.   All of them.  I'm not sure I understand how

11 to answer that.

12        Q.   Let me narrow it down.  On Exhibit 24.6,

13 it's labeled Simantel Invoices, 930.2 FERC 1 Public

14 Relations Expense, correct?

15        A.   Yes, ma'am.

16        Q.   And that's eight pages, correct?

17        A.   Correct.

18        Q.   And that document does not include any

19 samples of these materials, it just includes

20 descriptions?  Would you agree with me on that?

21        A.   Particular exhibit, correct.

22        Q.   Okay.  Now, were you the person who was

23 responsible for responding to AG -- AG Data Request

24 5.09?
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1        A.   Yes.

2             MS. SATTER:  And for the record we have a

3 previous agreement with counsel that the response to

4 AG 5.09 S would be admitted -- would be submitted to

5 the record as a Group Cross Exhibit and along with 16

6 attachments.  So I just want to make that statement.

7             MR. KENNEDY:  What -- Ms. Satter, what are

8 you marking that as?

9             MS. SATTER:  We are going to mark that as

10 AG Cross Exhibit 3.

11             MR. KENNEDY:  The one that was filed or --

12             MS. SATTER:  This is the one that was

13 filed.

14             MR. KENNEDY:  Okay.  Thank you.

15             MS. SATTER:  I'm sorry.  Make that 4.  I'm

16 sorry.  The AG Cross Exhibit will be 4, and what I'd

17 like to show the witness is a copy of the original

18 response to AG Cross -- to AG Data Request 5.09.

19             MR. KENNEDY:  If I could just ask one more

20 last clarifying question on the cross exhibit.  Are

21 you including the cover on the response that we've

22 filed?

23             MS. SATTER:  Yes.

24             MR. KENNEDY:  Thank you.
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1        Q.   (BY MS. SATTER:)  Now, Mr. Kennedy, my

2 question to you is is the document marked AG Cross

3 Exhibit 3, is that the initial response to AG Data

4 Request 5.09?

5        A.   Yes.

6        Q.   And was that produced on the date

7 indicated, that would be June 28th, 2013?

8        A.   Yes.

9        Q.   And is it correct that your supplemental

10 response to AG 5.09 which we're marking as AG Cross

11 Exhibit 4 was produced and dated August 14th, 2013?

12        A.   Yes.

13        Q.   And the Company was asked to provide

14 illustrative copies of specimen work products for each

15 individually significant effort undertaken by Simantel

16 in 2012; is that right?

17        A.   Yes.

18        Q.   And in the original response, were any work

19 product items produced, if you know?

20        A.   Produced or submitted?  I'm not sure.

21        Q.   Served on the parties as part of the

22 response.

23        A.   Did we provide requisite examples, is that

24 what the question is?
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1        Q.   Yes.

2        A.   Yes, we did.

3        Q.   In the original 5.9 in June, isn't it

4 correct that you did not provide anything in June but

5 you provided something in August?

6        A.   Correct.

7        Q.   Okay.  And in August you provided 16

8 examples; is that correct?

9        A.   Yes.

10        Q.   Okay.  Did you make those selections, which

11 16 would be used?

12        A.   I consulted with our staff, and we did that

13 together, made that determination together.

14        Q.   Now, these documents are part of the cross

15 exhibit that's been filed with all 16 attachments, but

16 I'm only going to refer to some of the attachments,

17 and I'm not going to mark them because they're already

18 filed as the appropriate attachment, but I do have

19 some copies for purposes of questions.

20             MR. KENNEDY:  And I don't have an objection

21 to that assuming that you have -- that you show him a

22 complete attachment of the 16, whatever you gave him

23 -- give him was a complete version of that particular

24 attachment.
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1             MS. SATTER:  Let's do it one by one.  First

2 I'm going to show you Attachment 5.

3             MR. KENNEDY:  I guess, Ms. Satter, we won't

4 object to the admission of the cross exhibit until we

5 have a chance to verify what you filed is complete if

6 that's acceptable.

7             MS. SATTER:  Sure.  I understand there

8 might have been some problem with some of them because

9 they might not have complied with the filing

10 requirements of the clerk's office.  One's a video, so

11 we should talk about that --

12             MR. KENNEDY:  Okay.

13             MS. SATTER:  -- and figure out how to make

14 that work.

15             MR. KENNEDY:  I agree.

16        Q.   (BY MS. SATTER:)  Because the understanding

17 was all 16 would be admitted, and that's what I would

18 like to make sure happens.

19             Okay.  Looking at Attachment 5, is this one

20 of the documents that you believed is a good

21 illustration of the type of work product that was

22 charged to this Public Relations account?

23        A.   Yes.

24        Q.   Okay.  And would you agree with me that
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1 page 4 talks about Ameren Energy Resources and Ameren

2 Transmission --

3        A.   Yes.

4        Q.   -- and not distribution?  Page 7 is

5 economic development in various places, page 8 is

6 Ameren Transmissions, 9 has to do with environmental

7 rules.

8             MR. KENNEDY:  Is there a question pending,

9 or are you just walking through the exhibit?

10        Q.   (BY MS. SATTER:)  I'm walking through the

11 exhibit, and then I'll ask a question based on the

12 exhibit.  10 talks about energy resources, generation

13 of resources.  11 is coal.  12 talks about Missouri.

14 13 looks like it's a national discussion.  Page 14

15 does talk about progress in Illinois.  And after page

16 14, would you agree with me that there is no other

17 specific reference to Illinois?

18        A.   Not specifically on this slide.

19        Q.   Okay.  And on this -- is it correct that

20 this was a presentation made by the president of

21 Ameren Corporation?

22        A.   The CEO of the corporation, I believe so.

23        Q.   Okay.  Not the CEO of Ameren Illinois?

24        A.   Correct.
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1        Q.   Okay.  Is it also correct to your

2 knowledge, without showing you the document, that

3 Attachment 6 was similarly a PowerPoint?  You don't

4 remember?

5        A.   No.

6             MS. SATTER:  Okay.  Now, I've got a package

7 of other attachments if we could go off the record for

8 just a minute.

9                    (Discussion off the record).

10             MS. SATTER:  Now, for the record, these are

11 groups of attachments.  It's not all of the

12 attachments.  There's just a few that I'll be asking

13 some questions on.

14             JUDGE ALBERS:  Is this also within Cross

15 Exhibit 4?

16             MS. SATTER:  Yes, these are among the 16

17 attachments that will be available.

18             JUDGE ALBERS:  Okay.

19        Q.   (BY MS. SATTER:)  On the first page, the

20 upper right-hand side corner in very small letters, it

21 says AG 5.09 S Attach 3.  Do you see that?

22        A.   Yes.

23        Q.   Is that -- do you recognize this --

24        A.   Yes.
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1        Q.   -- as a portion of Attach 3?

2        A.   I do.

3        Q.   And the different colors, do those

4 represent shared markets, Missouri markets and

5 Illinois markets?

6        A.   Yes.

7        Q.   So this document was -- maybe you can

8 describe what this document is.

9        A.   This is a fairly standard media planning

10 guide that helps the corporation and its segments plan

11 and execute paid media buys across its territories.

12        Q.   And if you'll notice on page 2 in the

13 Illinois section, which I think is --

14        A.   Light blue.

15        Q.   -- light blue.  The EE Act on Energy

16 information --

17        A.   Correct.

18        Q.   -- you don't know how that's treated for

19 recovery purposes, whether it's in the rider or in the

20 base rates?

21        A.   Correct.

22        Q.   And the next one is Attachment 8, and I'd

23 like to take 8 and 9 together.  Can you describe what

24 that represents?
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1        A.   This is a draft of a design of a Twitter

2 page for the Company.

3        Q.   Are the numbers on top, the 617,426, the

4 67,812, are those actual numbers?

5        A.   No, they're not.

6        Q.   Are those -- Is that wishful thinking?

7        A.   They are.

8        Q.   I thought 617,000 followers for electric

9 company, that was pretty good.  But those are

10 aspirational, shall we say?

11        A.   Yes.

12        Q.   Okay.  Now, the next one Focus on Safety,

13 See, Watch Out For Your Coworkers, and Attachment 11,

14 I believe, it's 12, 13, the next one, two, three, four

15 pages --

16        A.   Yes.

17        Q.   -- are these companywide promotions or

18 companywide projects to focus on safety?

19        A.   Yeah.  Safety is a core -- a core value and

20 a critical element of our external communications and

21 internal communications, and part of being effective

22 in communicating with customers is also continuously

23 reinforcing and reminding coworkers about the

24 importance of safety.  So several of these examples
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1 were visual reminders to co-workers about the need to

2 be safe in the workplace.

3        Q.   Would be fair to say this is signage?

4        A.   Yes.

5        Q.   And Attachment 12, which is the next one,

6 are these just considerations on what text to use for

7 the Act on Energy program?

8        A.   This is a --

9        Q.   That would be Attachment 12.

10        A.   Yeah, these are usage guidelines for the

11 Company to provide to our affiliates on the energy

12 efficiency programs.  One of the core ways we promote

13 and educate customers about the opportunities for them

14 to be more energy efficient and to take advantage of

15 rebates and other incentive programs is to do that

16 through qualified affiliates who promote those

17 programs, and many of them do not have extensive

18 advertising budgets or the opportunities to promote

19 their business, and this is a way that we insure that

20 if they're going to utilize Act on Energy, that

21 they're doing that in a uniform way that fits the

22 guidelines of the corporation.

23        Q.   But again Act on Energy is an

24 energy-efficiency program, you don't know whether it's
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1 recovered through a rider or through base rates?

2        A.   Energy efficiency is recovered through the

3 rider.  There's only -- The examples that we're

4 showing here were -- the examples that we supplied

5 were a mix of various types of communications that

6 were undertaken by Simantel on the company's behalf

7 and Act on Energy, safety, social media, and our media

8 planning were all part of that grouping of types of

9 communications.

10        Q.   So you're including the energy efficiency

11 in --

12        A.   Including it in the example of something

13 that Simantel would have done for us.

14        Q.   Okay.  But you don't know whether that

15 particular cost --

16        A.   This particular cost would probably be

17 better a question for someone on the accounting side.

18        Q.   Okay.  And Attachment 14, the whole thing

19 didn't print.  It says Ameren -- it looks like it says

20 Focus on Safety Contractor, is that -- can you explain

21 what that is?

22        A.   Yes, same general concept.  As an

23 affiliate, we have direct employees that are -- are on

24 our payroll that do work, and we have a large number
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1 of contractors that -- that also do electrical work in

2 the field.

3        Q.   Is this a badge or a T-shirt?

4        A.   Not exactly sure.

5        Q.   Okay.

6        A.   It may have been decal for a truck or a

7 point of work sign that was a reminder for the

8 contractors to also follow our safety principals.

9        Q.   And the last one, Attachment 16, you

10 produced some T-shirt designs?

11        A.   Yeah.

12        Q.   Looks like from the middle one is for an

13 American Cancer Society volunteer program.  Is that

14 right?

15        A.   Yes.

16        Q.   So this makes sure that the Ameren

17 personnel who participated in this project can be

18 identified as associated with the Company?

19        A.   Correct.

20        Q.   I just have a couple more questions.  The

21 Focused Energy for Life, is that a Companywide project

22 across Illinois and Missouri?

23        A.   It's -- The Focused Energy for Life is a --

24 it's not a project, it's a name that is often attached
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1 to certain types of projects that we do, and so the

2 example I would give you would be a -- let's take a

3 typical 30-second customer education advertisement.

4 30 seconds is not a lot of time to convey a message

5 about safety, or energy efficiency, or opportunity to

6 take control on maintenance or use.  Many corporations

7 have position statements that they utilize in order to

8 help customers remember who the advertising is from,

9 and that's what Focused on Energy For Life is, is a

10 tag that as customers hear that, they know it's

11 Ameren, and the corporation, in our case Ameren

12 Illinois, that's about three seconds in a 30-second

13 spot.  So roughly 90 percent of a message is focused

14 on education, and about ten percent on that final

15 positioning tag.  So it's not a project.

16        Q.   It's not an initiative or a type of

17 communications project?

18        A.   Not in this -- not in this proceeding it

19 isn't.

20        Q.   But that tag is applied to Illinois,

21 Missouri, and generation and transmission information?

22        A.   Illinois is on most external communications

23 it's -- it is applied.

24        Q.   Do you know if it's applied in Missouri?
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1        A.   Pretty sure in Missouri.  I'm not entirely

2 sure.

3        Q.   And you don't know if it was applied to the

4 generation side of the business?

5        A.   I don't know.  I assume it is.

6             MS. SATTER:  Okay.  Thank you.  I have no

7 further questions.  Thank you for the time.

8             JUDGE ALBERS:  Mr. Kennedy, do you have a

9 copy of your DR responses with you?

10             THE WITNESS:  I think I do.

11             JUDGE ALBERS:  This is a DR that was

12 referenced -- that was attached to the AG testimony,

13 but I'm looking for DR AG 5.10, and that was attached

14 as AG Exhibit 3.2 to Mr. Brosch's rebuttal if anybody

15 wants to follow along.

16             THE WITNESS:  You know, I don't believe I

17 have the DRs.

18             JUDGE ALBERS:  Okay.

19             THE WITNESS:  Do you have a copy?

20             MR. KENNEDY:  Can we go off the record?

21             JUDGE ALBERS:  Why don't we just break for

22 five minutes while you're looking for that.

23                        (A break was taken.)

24             JUDGE ALBERS:  Do you have a copy now of
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1 your response to AG 5.10?

2             THE WITNESS:  Yes.

3             JUDGE ALBERS:  Okay.  Did AIC disallow any

4 -- disallow on its own any of Mr. Brosch's charges for

5 training of listed employees?

6             THE WITNESS:  No.

7             JUDGE ALBERS:  Just am I looking at my

8 exhibit, as I was looking over Mr. Brosch's testimony,

9 it looks like some of those employees, although their

10 names are redacted, some of them might be employees of

11 other Ameren affiliates.  Am I -- perhaps like on

12 March 28th, training date, it lists the president of

13 ATX, and president of AER, which I'm -- correct me if

14 I'm wrong, but I'm assuming ATX is ATXI, a

15 Transmission affiliate, and AER, Ameren Energy

16 Resources?

17             MR. KENNEDY:  Verbal.  Yes?

18             THE WITNESS:  Yes.

19             JUDGE ALBERS:  Yes.  Okay.  Would their

20 training necessarily or should it necessarily be on a

21 bill, so to speak, being passed through to Ameren

22 Illinois customers?

23             THE WITNESS:  I can say that it's my

24 understanding that we would have been paying for the
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1 Illinois portion of that.  Now, it is possible that

2 because we do receive support from corporate

3 communications on activities to educate customers that

4 some components of their training may have been picked

5 up, but, as I understand it, these would have been

6 allocated to the business segments for our individual

7 components.

8             JUDGE ALBERS:  Okay.

9             THE WITNESS:  I cannot say that for sure,

10 but that is as I would understand it.

11             JUDGE ALBERS:  All right.  That's why I

12 asked about disallowances earlier, but you're thinking

13 that the portion that Ameren Illinois Company would be

14 asked to pay would just reflect the Ameren Illinois

15 employees?

16             THE WITNESS:  Potentially some of the

17 corporate -- the corporate communications, not other

18 segments.

19             JUDGE ALBERS:  Okay.  Is there any way of

20 telling on here how many of the employees would have

21 been Ameren Illinois employees versus other

22 affiliates?

23             THE WITNESS:  I could go up through and try

24 to count them.
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1             JUDGE ALBERS:  Well, I just meant some of

2 them like the March 28, 1:00 to 4:00, media training

3 reflects advanced threshold without any titles or any

4 indication of who it was, and I didn't know if that --

5             THE WITNESS:  Yeah, my understanding is

6 that the training was provided to the large

7 cross-section of folks from all of the different

8 business segments.

9             JUDGE ALBERS:  Okay.  Is there any other

10 particular entry on any of the other exhibits that

11 might reflect how many of the employees would have

12 been Ameren Illinois employees versus other

13 affiliates?

14             THE WITNESS:  I can't tell you that

15 offhand.

16             JUDGE ALBERS:  Okay.  That's all.  I just

17 was needing seeking some clarification there.  So

18 thank you.

19             THE WITNESS:  Uh-huh.  That's it.

20             MR. KENNEDY:  If you don't mind, we'll take

21 five minutes to discuss redirect while you handle Mr.

22 Robertson's witness.

23             JUDGE YODER:  Okay.  Very well.  Mr.

24 Robertson, you have the floor.
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1             MR. ROBERTSON:  Yes.  Your Honor, at this

2 time IIEC would like to move the admission of IIEC

3 Exhibit 1.0, the direct testimony of IIEC witness

4 Michael P. Gorman filed on e-Docket on July 3rd, 2013,

5 consisting of ten pages of questions and answers and

6 an appendix A consisting of two pages, and IIEC

7 Exhibit 1.1 and exhibit attached to Mr. Gorman's

8 direct testimony entitled Rate of Return filed on

9 e-Docket on July 3rd, 2013, and IIEC Exhibit 2.0, the

10 affidavit of Mr. Gorman supporting the admission of

11 his direct testimony and exhibit filed by e-Docket on

12 September 16th, 2013.

13             JUDGE YODER:  All right.  Thank you.  Is

14 there any objection to the admission of IIEC Exhibit

15 1.0 with the accompanying exhibit appendix or his

16 affidavit identifying his Exhibit 2.0?

17                   Hearing none, that will be admitted

18 into evidence in this docket.

19                        (IIEC Exhibits 1.0, 1.1, and 2.0

20                         admitted.)

21             MR. ROBERTSON:  Thank you.

22             JUDGE YODER:  Thank you, Mr. Robertson.

23             MS. SATTER:  May I ask a question?

24             JUDGE YODER:  Uh-huh.
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1             MS. SATTER:  Do you need copies of anything

2 when the witness is -- when we move testimony?

3             JUDGE YODER:  We can go off the record for

4 a second.

5                        (Discussion off the record.)

6             JUDGE YODER:  Then back on the record.

7             MR. KENNEDY:  The Company does not have any

8 redirect for Mr. Kennedy.  We dismiss him and thank

9 him for his service.

10             JUDGE YODER:  You can step down, Mr.

11 Kennedy.  Thank you.

12                            (Witness excused.)

13             JUDGE YODER:  Any objection to admission of

14 Ameren Exhibit 6.0 with accompanying exhibits, 6.1 and

15 Revised 6.2 to 6.3, and Exhibit 14.0 Revised, 24.0,

16 with 24.4, 24.5, and 24.1 through 24.3 Revised and

17 24.6 Revised?

18                   Hearing none, those will be admitted

19 into evidence in this docket.

20                        (Ameren Exhibits 6.0, 6.1, 6.2

21                         Revised, 6.3 Revised, 14

22                         Revised, 24.0, 24.1 Revised,

23                         24.2 Revised, 24.3 Revised,

24                         24.4, 24.5, and 24.6 Revised



168

1                         admitted.)

2             JUDGE YODER:  Does the AG want to move any

3 of those Cross Exhibits?

4             MS. SATTER:  Yes, we would move for the

5 admission of AG Cross Exhibits 3 and 4 subject to

6 making sure that all 16 attachments to AG Cross

7 Exhibit 4 can be uploaded.  If not, they'll be served

8 one way --

9             MR. KENNEDY:  Yes, counsel for the Company

10 will work with the AG to make sure whatever gets

11 uploaded is accurate and complete to the best of our

12 intellectual capabilities.

13             JUDGE YODER:  Is there any objection to AG

14 Cross Exhibit 3 or AG Cross Exhibit 4?

15             MR. KENNEDY:  No.

16             JUDGE YODER:  Without objection, those will

17 be admitted into evidence in this docket.

18                        (AG Cross Exhibits 3 and 4

19                         admitted.)

20             JUDGE YODER:  And, Ms. Satter, I assume AG

21 1 and 2, you're going to hold in abeyance until Mr.

22 Stafford is on the witness stand?

23             MS. SATTER:  Yes.

24             JUDGE YODER:  Okay.  AG 5 you are not
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1 moving?

2             MS. SATTER:  It was Attachment 5 to AG 4.

3             JUDGE YODER:  That was the copy of the

4 Ameren presentation?

5             MS. SATTER:  Yes.

6             JUDGE YODER:  Okay.  I got that all messed

7 up now.

8             MS. SATTER:  I can see how that since it

9 was sequential.

10             JUDGE YODER:  We can delete that entirely.

11 All right.  Then with that understanding and those

12 admitted, is there any further business today?

13             MR. KENNEDY:  No further business.

14             JUDGE YODER:  None.  Then we will adjourn

15 this matter to 9:00 September 17.  Thank you.

16                        (Hearing in recess at 3:03 p.m.)

17
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